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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of AB
PanevézZio Statybos Trestas

Report on the annual financial statements

We have audited the accompanying annual financial statements of AB PanevéZio Statybos
Trestas (hereinafter “the Company*), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2009, the statement of comprehensive mcome, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 5-32.

Management's responsibility for the annual financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial
statcments in accordance with International Finaneial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applymg
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumsiances.

Auditor ’s responsibility .

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our
audit. We eonducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethieal requirements, plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
diselosures in the annual finaneial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the annual financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial -
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstanees, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also ineludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the manageinent, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the annual financial statements.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Opinion
In our opinion, the aeccompanying annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the
finaneial position of AB Panevéfio Statybos Trestas as at 31 December 2009, and of its

financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended i accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standerds as adopted by the European Union.

2010 KPMG Haltics, UAB, a Lithuanlan limited Gability compary and a Company code: 111494971
membsar fiem of the KPMG network, of Independant member lirms afifistad VAT coda: LT114%48718
with KPMG Inlamational Covparalive [HPMG tional™), @ Swiss snlity.

All rights rseryed.



e

Report on legal and other regulatory requirements

Furthermore, we have read the annual report for the year 2009 set out on pages 33-55 of the
annual financial statements and have not identified any material inconsistencies between the
financial information included in the annual report and the annual financial statements for the
year 2009.

Vilnius, 31 March 2010
KPMG Balties, UAB

ot

D i Vilmantas Karalius
Pa ACCA and Lithuanian
ertified Auditor Certified Auditor



Confirmation of the Company’s responsible employees

To: The Securities Commission of the Republic of Lithuania
Konstitucijos 23, LT-08105 Vilnius

Vilnius Stock Exchange
Konstitucijos 7, 15f1., LT-08105 Vilnius

This confirmation of responsible employees of AB PanevéZio Statybos Trestas coneerning the
audited annual financial statements and the annual report for the year 2009 is presented in
accordance with the regulations for preparation and presentation of periodical additional
information as adopted by the Law on the Securities on 18 January 2008 and by the decision of
the Securities Commission of the Republic of Lithuania No. 1K-3 dated 23 February 2007.

We confirm that, as to our knowledge, the presented annual financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, the liabilities, the financial position and
the result of AB PanevéZio Statybos Trestas. The annual report fairly states the rcview of
business development and activities, the Company’s position and the description of main risks
and uncertainties.

AB PanevéZio Statybos Trestas AB Panevézio Statybos Trestas
Managing Director Finance Director
Dalius Gesevi¢ius Dalé Bemotaitiené
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Approved on
Minutes No.

Statement of financial position as at 31 December

In Litas

Note 2009 2008
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 28,832,083 34,786,471
Intangible assets 14 80,009 287,261
Investments in subsidiaries 15 24,577,954 24,577,954
Other investments and long-term receivables 16 19,815,521 217,839
Deferred tax agsets 12 345,408 1,887,937
Total non-current assets 73,650,975 61,757,462
Current assets
Inventories 17 4,418,046 8,385,119
Trade receivables 18 47,623,506 103,871,477
Prepayments 19 4,198,396 3,412,379
Other assets 19 654,644 1,519,462
Cash and eash cquivalents 20 53,934,684 54,770,637
Total current asscis 110,829,276 171,959,074
TOTAL ASSETS 184,480,251 233,716,536

The notes on pages 10-32 are an integral part of these annual financial statements.

Managing Director

Dalius Gesevitius
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Statement of financial position as at 31 December

In Litas

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Reserves

Retained eamings

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Loans and other financial borrowings
Warranty provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Loans and other financial borrowings
Trade payables

Prepayments received

Current tax payable

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabiiities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

21
21

23

12

23

12
24

2009 2008
16,350,000 16,350,000
11,350,624 11,340,058
97,031,157 93,372,055

124,731,781 121,062,113

4,323,901 7,148,115
1,289,640 1,804,644
1,714,517 2,426,257
7,328,058 11,379,016
2,760,113 3,522,594
17,967,020 60,489,169
17,798,652 7.525,256
126,597 5,372,137
13,768,030 24,366,251
52,420412 101,275,407
50,748,470 112,654,423
184,480,251 233,716,536

The notes on pages 10-32 are an integral part of these annual finaneial statements.

Managing Director

Daljus Geseviius
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31

December
In Litas

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Sales expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Result from operating activities

Finance ineome
Finance expenses

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Net profit (loss)

Other comprehensive income:
Revaluation of land and buildings
Related deferred tax liability

Total comprehengive income

Basie and diluted earnings per share

Note

O LA

L= - |

11
11

12

22

2009 2008

167,704,471 558,902,531
(139,789,187)  (469,762,064)
27,915,284 89,140,467
384,119 547,529
(406,102) (614,888)
(22,965921)  (30,899,865)
(708,812) (229,632)
4,218,568 57,943,611
4,677,335 1,186,712
(756,014)  (1,210,805)
8,139,889 57,919,518
(3,325,721} (9,304,074)
4,814,168 48,615,444

0 8,411,802
(0  (1,682,360)
4,814,168 55,344,886
0.29 2.97

The notes on pages 10-32 are an integral part of these annual financial statements.

Managing Director

Dalius Gesevitius
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AB Panevéfio Statybos Trestas
Annual financial statements

Entity's code: 147732969
Address: P. Puzino 1, LT-35173 Panevézys

Approved on
Minutes No.

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December

In Litas
Note 2009 2008

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the period 4,814,168 48,615,444
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 6,484,399 5,628,530
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 58,382 (71,758)
Income tax expense 3,325,721 5,304,074
Other non-cash items (1,986,275) 3,516,067

12,696,895 66,992,357
Change in long-term receivables (109,258) 58,236
Change in inventories 3,967,073 2,954,356
Change in trade receivables 56,247,971 6,199,536
Change in prepayments (786,017) (984,471)
Change in other assets 904,184 (751,474)
Change in trade payables (42,522,149) (4,249,200)
Change in prepayments received (10,273,396) (38,237,286)
Change in other liabilities 9,985,795 2,970,595

30,686,300 34,952,649
Ineome tax paid (8,352,734) (7,670,010)
Net cash from operating nctivities 22,333,566 27,282,639
Casli flows [rom investing activitics
Acquisition of property, plani and equipment (438,922) (2,314,085)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 57,281 108,687
Loans issued (28,533,959) (9,000)
Loans recovered 9,045,535 117,450
Dividends and interest received 3,263,158 0
Net cash used in investing activities (16,606,907) {2,096,548)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (2,271,930) (4,040,103)
Proceeds from loans and other finaneial borrowings 0 0
Repayment of loans and other financial borrowings (0) (506,732)
Payment of finance lease liabilities (3,586,695) (4,070,786)
Interest paid (703,987) (838,151)
Net cash from (nsed in) financing activitics (6,562,612) (9,455,772)
Net increasc in cash and cash equivalents (835,953) 15,729,919
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 54,770,637 39,040,718
Cash and cash egnivalents at 31 December 53,934,684 54,710,637

The notes on pages 10-32 are an integral part of these annual finaneial statements.

Managing Director

Dalius Gesevidius




AR Panevé¥o Statybos Tresias
Annual financial statements

Notes to the annual financial statements

Reporting entity

AB PanevéZio Statybos Trestas (hereinafter “the Company” was established in 1957. The
entity’s code is 147732969 and it is registercd at P. Puzino 1, LT-35173 PanevéZys. The
Company primarily is involved in the construction of buildings, construetions, other facilities
and networks, etc. in Lithuania and abroad. The Company employed 1,129 employees as at 31
December 2008 (1,277 emnployees as at 31 Dccember 2007).

The Company has the following branches in Lithvania: Gerbiista and Pastaty Apdaila. The
Company also has the branch in Kaliningrad. Furthermore, the Company has a represcntative
office in Cerepovec.

The main shareholders of the Company are:

+ AB PanevéZio keliai (49.78%),
+ Bank of New York as eustodian and trustec (8.12%),
+ Skandinaviska Enskildas Banken elients (7.92%).

These annual financial statements are the Company’s separate annual financial statements. The
Comnpany has also preparcd the consolidated annual financial statements including the Company
and its subsidiaries, whieh are disclosed in Note 15.

The shareholders of the Company have a statutory right to either approve these annual finaneial
statements or not approve them and require the Management to prepare a new set of annual
finaneial statements.

Basis of preparation

Statement of cownpliance

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (hercinafter IFRSs).

Basis of measurement

The annual financial statements have bcen prepared on the historieal cost basis except for
revalued land and buildings.

Functional and presentation currency

The annual financial statements are presented in national currency Litas, which is the
Company's functional currency.

Usc of estimates and jndgments

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affcct the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and labilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected.

10




AB Panevéfio Statybos Trestas
Annual financial statements

Use of estimates and judgments (continucd)

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgement in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
annual financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 5 — construction contract revenue;

Note 13 — fair value of land and buildings, useful lives of property plant and equipements;
Note 15 — measurement of recoverable amounts of investments;

Note 18 — impairment of trade receivables;

Note 24 — measurement of warranty provision.

Market uncertainties

The ongoing global crisis resulted in, among other things, a lower liquidity level in financial and
real estate markets and a lower level of capital market funding. In addition to that, Lithuania has
been experiencing economic downturn which has affected, and may continue to affect, the
activities of enterprises opcrating in this environinent. The annual financial statements reflect
management’s assessment of the impact of the Lithuanian and global business environment on
the operations and the financial position of the Company. The future developments in business
environment may differ from manageinent’s assessment.

Significant accounting policies

The aecounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these annual financial statements, except as explained in a paragraph below (Srandards,
interpretations and amendments to published standards that are adopted) which addresses
changes in accounting policies. Certain eomparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
to the current year’s prescntation.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign curreneies arc translated to the functional currency at exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transaetions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreigu
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate
ruling at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is recognized in profit or
loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at
fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange ratc at the date that the fair
value was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in
profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative finaneial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash
cquivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. The Company has no held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Other non-derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, othcr non-
derivative financial instruments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.

il



AB Panevéiio Statybos Trestas
Annual financial statements

Derivative financial instruments

The Company has no derivative finaneial instruments.

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment except for land and buildings are measured at cost less
accumulated depreeiation and accumulated impairment losses. Land and buildings are measured
at fair value with any surplus arising on the revaluation recognized directly in a revaluation
reserve within equity and with any deficit on a revaluation recognized in profit or loss.

Cost includes expenditure that is direetly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The eost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other eosts directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of
dismantling and removing the itéms and restoring the site on which they are located. Borrowing
costs related to qualifying assets are eapitalized only for the newly asquired assets.

The fair value of land and buildings is based on market values. More detailed comments
coneerning the fair value of land and buildings are stated in Note [3.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
ageounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economie benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be mcasured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreeiation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased asscts are depreciated
over the shortcr of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives are
discloscd in Note 13. Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.

(ains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized net within other income in
profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation surplus
reserve are fransferred to retained earnings.

Intangible assets

Software and other intangiblc assets, which have finitc useful lives, are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized in
profit or [oss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the
date that they are available for use. The estimatcd useful lives are disclosed in Note 14.

12



AB Panevé¥io Stalybos Trestas
Annual financial statements

Leased assets

Leascs in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classificd as finanee leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is mcasured
at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset. Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets
are not recognized on the Company’s statement of financial position.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less inpairmert.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is
based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of eompletion and selling expenses.

Construction work in progress

Construction work in progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected
froin customers for contract work performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognized
to date less progress billings and recognized losses. Cost includes all expenditurc related direetly
to specific projeets and an allocation of fixed and variable overheads incurred in the Company’s
contract activities based on normal opcrating capacity.

Construction work in progress is presented as part of trade receivables in the statement of
financial position. If payments received from customers cxeeed the income recognized, then the
difference is presented as deferred income in the statement of financial position.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objeetive
evidence that it is impaired. An impairment loss in respeet of a finaneial asset measured at
amortized cost is calculated as the differcnce between its carrying amount, and the present value
of the estiniated future eash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the iinpairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
revicwed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, then the assct’s recoverable amount is estimated.

13
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The reeoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less eosts to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
diseounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refleets eurrent inarket
assessments of the time value of money and the risks speeifie o the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from eontinuing use that are largely independent of the eash inflows of other assets
or groups of assets (the cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its eash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated reeoverable amount. inpairment losses are reeognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estinates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is revcrsed only to the extent that the asset’s earrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreeiation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in whieh they are declared.

Provisions

A provision is reeognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation thal can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economie benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
diseounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying eonstruction services are sold.
The provision is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes
against their associated probabilities. “

Employee benefits

The Company does not have any adopted defined contribution and benefit plans and has no
share based payment schemes. Post employment obligations to employees retired on pension are
borne by the State.

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as a current expense in the period when employees
render the services. These include salaries and wages, soeial security contributions, bonuses,
paid holidays and other benefits. There are no long-term employee benefits.

Revenue

Construetion contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the eontract plus any
variations in contract work, elaims and ineentive payments to the extent that il is probable that
they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. As soon as the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably, confract revenue and expenses are recognized in
profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract.

14
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Revenue (continued)

When the outcoine of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognized only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An
expected loss on a contract is reeognized immediately in profit or loss.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income and dividend income. Interest income is recognized
as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized
in profit or loss on the date that the Company’s right to reeeive payment is established. Finance
expenses comprise interest expense and impairment losses recognized on financial assets. All
borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Foreign
curreney gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises eurrent and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized dircetly in equity, in which
case it is recognized in equity.

Curreut tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enaeted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balanee sheet method, providing for temporary differences
belween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for finaneial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the Jaws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary difference ean be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, sueh as convertible notes and share options granted to employees.

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares. Hence the diluted earnings per share are
the same as the basic eamnings per share.

15
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Segment reporting

No segment reporting is provided in the annual finaneial statements as the Company has one
reportable operating segment that would account for 90% or more of the Company’s revenue
and assets.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are adopted

The Company adopted those new/revised standards and interpretations beeoming mandatory for
the finaneial years beginning on or after .1 January 2009 and applicable to the Company’s
operations:

¢ The Company applies revised IAS | Presentation of Finaneial Statements (2007), which
became effective as of 1 January 2009. As a result, the Company presents in the statement
of changes in equity all owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity
are presented in the statement of eomprehensive income. Since the ehange in aceounting
policy only impacts presentation aspécts, there is no impact on carnings per share.
Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009) aim at requiring
enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity risk associated with
financial instruments. These amendments have been adopted by the Company (o the extent
applicable to the Company’s operations.

¢ The revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (mandatory for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009) was started to be applied as of the day it came into effect,

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2009, and have not been applied in preparing thesc annual
finaneial statements. Below is the estimate of the Company’s management regarding the
potential effect of the new and revised standards and intcrpretations upon their first-time
application.

» Amended IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” is effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009. The Standard’s scope was amended and the description of the purpose
was expanded. Amended IFRS 3 shall be applied perspeetively and hence will not have an
influence on the comparative figures.

* Amended IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” is effeetive for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 February 2010. The Amendment requires that rights, options or
warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount
of any curreney are equity instruments if the entity offers the rights, options or warrants pro
rata to all of its existing owners of the same elass of its own non-derivative equity
instruments. The Amendment is not relevant to the Company’s annual financial statcments
as the Company has not issued such instruments at any time in the past.
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New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

Amended IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” is effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009. The Amendment clarifies the
application of existing principles that determine whether specific risks or portions of cash
flows are eligible for designation in a hedging relationship. In designating a hedging
relationship the risks or portions must be separately identifiable and reliably measurable;
however inflation cannot be designated, except in limited circumstances. The Amendment is
not relevant to the Company’s annual financial statements as the Company does not apply
hedge aceounting.

IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” is effective for the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 April 2009. The Interpretation provides guidance to private
seetor entities on certain recognition and measurement issues that arise in accounting for
public-to-private service concession arrangements. The Interpretation is not relevant to the
Company’s operations as the Company has not entered into any service coneession
arrangements.

IFRIC 15 “Agreements for the Construetion of Real Estate” clarifies that revenue arising
from agreements for the construction of real estate is recognized by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract aetivity in the few defined cases. In all other cases, revenue is
recognized when all of the revenue recognition criteria of JAS 18.14 are satisfied. Based on
the Company’s manageinent assessment, the Interpretation has no significant influence on
the Company’s annual financial statements.

IFRIC 17 “Distributions of Non-eash Assets to Owners” is effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 15 July 2009. The Interpretation applies to non-reciprocal distributions
of non-cash assets to owners acting in their capacity as owners. In accordance with the
Interpretation a liability to pay a dividend shall be recognized when the dividend is
appropriately authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the entity and shall be
measured at the fair valuc of the assets to be distributed. The carrying amount of the
dividend payable shall b¢ remeasured at each reporting date, with any changes in the
earrying amount recognized in equity as adjustments to the amount of the distribution.
When the dividend payable is settled the difference, if any, between the carrying amount of
the assets distributed and the carrying amount of the dividend payable shall be recognized in
profit or loss. As the Interpretation is applicable only from the date of application, it will not
impaet on the annual finaneial statements for periods prior to the date of adoption on the
Interpretation. Further, since it relates to future dividends that will be-at the discretion of the
shareholders, it is not possiblc to determine the effects of application in advance.

IFRIC 18 “Transfers of Assets from Customers” is effective for the annual pcriods
beginning on or after 1 November 2009. The Interpretation requires an entity that receives a
contribution in the scope of the Interpretation to recognize the items as an asset at its fair
value if the transferred item meets the criteria for property, plant and equipment in IAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment”. The Interpretation also requires the entity to recognize the
amount as revenue; the timing of revenue recognition depends on the facts and
circumstances of the particular arrangement. The Interprefation is not relevant to the
Company’s annual financial statements as the Company does not normally receive
contributions from eustoiners.
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New standards and interpretations net yet adopted (continned)

» Further to those listed above, there were also amendments in IAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements™ (effeetive for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009) and IFRIC 16 “Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation” (effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009), however, this Standard and Interpretation
are not relevant to the Company’s annual finaneial statements.

Financial risk management

Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: eredit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk. This note presents information about the Company’s
exposure to each of these risks, the Company’s objeetives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures
are included throughout these annual finaneial statements,

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify
and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company
aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in whieh all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a eustomer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises prineipally from the
Company’s receivables from customers.

The Company controls credit risk by credit policies and procedures. The Company has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed for ereditworthiness
before the standard payment terms and conditions are offered. Customers that fail to meet the
benehmark creditworthiness may transact with the Company only on a prepayment basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk can be specified as follows:

(In Litas) Amount

Prepayments 4,198,396
Trade receivables 47,623,506
Other receivable amounts 20,470,165
Cash and cash equivalents 53,934,684
Total 126,226,751
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Credit risk (continued)

Receivable amounts from municipalities and state institutions:

(in Litas) 2009 2008
Municipalities and state institutions 25,136,130 53,723,100
Other 22,487,376 50,148,377
Total trade reccivables 47,623, 506 103,871,477
Trade receivables aceording to major customers:

(In Litas) Amount %

1 client 12,485,609 26.2
2 client 11,104,430 23.3
3 client 5,053,444 10.6
4 client 4,202,050 8.8
5 client 2,805,908 5.9
6 client 2,681,850 5.6
7 client 1,183,743 2.5
Qther clients 8,106,472 17.1
Total 47,623,506 100
Trade receivables according to geographic regions:

(In Litas) Awmount
Domestic market 46 528 161
Russia 1095345
Total 47 623 506
Ageing of trade receivables as at the reporting date might be specified as follows:

(In Litas) Amount Iinpairment
Not overdue 30,142,567

Overdue 0-30 days 1,205,040

Overdue 30-90 days 1,325,353 274,677
More than 90 days 30,054,402 14,829,179
Total 62,727,362 15,103,856

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respeet of trade receivables. The main components of this allowanee are a specifie loss
component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component
established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet
identified. Methodology used for establishing the allowanee is reviewed regularly to reduce any

differences between loss estimate and actual loss experience.

19



AB Panevétio Statybos Trestas
Annuai financial statemenis

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meel its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation. Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to
meet expected operational expenses, ineluding the servicing of financial obligations; this
excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters.

Payment terms of liabilities as at 31 December 2009, including calculated interest, as to the agreements,
are presented below:

Conlractual

Balance netcash 6 months 6-12
In thousand Litas value flows or less months  1-2 years 2-5 years
Lliabilities
Loans and lease liabililies 7,084,014 7,634,211 1,526,928 1,526,927 4,030,395 545,961
Trade creditors 17,967,020 17,967,020 17,957,020
Other amounis payable 31,693,279 31,693,27% 31,693,279
Total 56,744,313 57,294,510 51,187,227 1,526,927 4,030,395 549,961

Interest rate applied for calculation of contractual nct cash flows:
2009

Loans and lease liabilities 1.87%-247%

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the Company’s ineome or the valne of its holdings of finaneial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency risk. The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency Litas. The Company does
not use any financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange risk.

During the year, currency exchange rates in respect of Litas were as follows:

31 December 2009 Average 2009

1 EUR = 3.4528 3.4528
1USD = 2.4052 2.4828
1RUB = 0.0795 0.0783
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Market risk (continued)

The Company’s exposure to foreign eurrency risk can be specified as follows:

Year 2009 (in Litas) LTL EUR RUB usD
Long term receivables 18,822,208 993,313

Trade receivables 43,652,882 2,875,279 1,095,345

Prepayments 2,223,275 59,293 1,905,828

Other assets 615278 39,366

Cash and cash equivalents 46,281,582 1,532,502 6,090,696 - 29,904
Loans and other finaneial borrowings (0 (7,084,014)

Payables (44,747,464) (2,108257)  (2,804,578)

Total exposure 66,857,761 (4,725,197) 7,319,970 29,904

The funetional eurrency of the Company is Litas. The Comnpany faces foreign currency risk on
purchases and payable amounts as well as on sales and amounts receivable that are
denominated in currencies other than Litas and EUR. The risk related to transactions in EUR is
considered to be insignificant as the Lithuanian Litas is pegged to EUR at a fixed rate.

A change of curenccy exchange rate of Russian rouble by 0,005 points would have decreased
receivable amounts by approximately LTL 254 thousands, cash and cash equivalents — by
approximately LTL 383 thousands, and payable amounts — by approximately LTL 176 thousands.

Interest rate risk. The Company’s issued loans and borrowings are subject to variable interest
rates linked to EURIBOR and VILIBOR. No financial instruments are used to manage the risk.
Taking into consideration the current level of issued loans and borrowings, the change of
interest rate would not have a material effect.

Variable interest rate financial assets and liabilities were as follows:

Currency 2009
Issued long term loans LTL 7,660,749
Financial lease liabilities EUR (7,084,014)
Total 576,735

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain invcstor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board monitors the
return on capital and proposes the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders based on the
Company’s financial results and strategic plans. There were no changes in the Company’s
approach to capital management during the ycar.

Revenue and gross profit

Year 2009 (in Litas) Lithuania Russia Total
Revenue 160,300,265 7,404,206 167,704,471
Expenses (154,427,115) (9,058,788) (163,485,903}
Resuit from operating activities 5,873,150 (1,654,582) 4,218,568
Year 2008 (in Litas) Lithuania Russia Total
Revenue 526,352,493 32,550,038 558,902,531
Expenses (469,336,811)  (31,622,109)  (500,958,920)
Result from operating activities 57,015,682 927,929 57,943,611
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Revenue and gross profit (continued)

Construction contract revenue is recognized in accordance with the stage of completion of the
contract. The stage of completion is determined based on the percentage of contract costs
incurred in relation to total estimated contract costs, which are revised at each reporting date.

Cost of sales

(in Litas) 2009 2008
Sub-contractors 61,394,141 251,684,519
Raw materials and consunables 39,842 493 115,792,341
Personnel expenses 21,920,594 57,693,280
Depreciation 4,904,235 4,658,239
Amortisation 100,929 105,724
Other costs 11,626,795 39,827,961
Total cost of sales 139,789,187 469,762,064
Sales expenses

(in Litas) 2009 2008
Advertising and similar expenses 208,010 329,971
Personnel expenses 173,016 216,006
Other expenses 25,076 68,911
Total sales expenses 406,102 614,888
Administrative expenses

(in Litas) 2009 2008
Personnel expenses 5,696,055 19,713,085
Purchased services for administration purposes 2,396,459 3,681,745
Depreciation 1,065,167 760,204
Amortization 50,266 44,789
Operating taxes 364,341 619,909
Impairment of trade receivables 8,615,702 3,451,957
Other expenses 4,777,931 2,628,176
Total administrative expeuses 22,965,921 30,899,865
Personnel expenses

(In Litas) 2009 2008
Wages and salaries 25,566,599 54,157,452
Compulsory social seeurity contributions 7,896,124 16,764,260
Daily and illness allowances 1,647,191 2,084,774
Change in accrued vaeation reserve and bonuses (7,320,249) 4,615,885
Total personnel expenses 27,789,665 77,622,371
Included into:

Cost of sales 21,920,594 57,693,280
Administrative expenses 5,696,055 19,713,085
Sales expenses 173,016 216,006
Total personnel expenses 27,789,665 77,622,371

Wages, salaries and social insurance contributions, calculated to the management for the year
2009 amounted to 3,678,369 Litas (4,294,223 Litas for the year 2008).

22



AB Panevéfio Stalybos Trestas
Annual financial siatements

10, Other income and expcnses

11.

12.

(In Litas) 2009 2008
Rent and other income 384,119 475,771
Gain from disposed property plant and equipement 0 71,758
Total other income 384,119 547,529
Depreciation of rented premises and other expenses (649,930) (229,632)
Loss from disposed property plant and equipement (58,882) 0
Total other expenses (708,812) (229,632)
Total other income and expenses, net (324,693) 317,897

Finance income and expenses

(In Litas) 2009 2008
Interest income 3,245,124 1,050,101
Forcign curreney exehange gain 1,082,627 0
Other incomc 349,584 136,611
Total finance income 4,677,335 1,186,712
Interest expenses (703,987) (838,151)
Foreign eurrency exchange loss (1)) (369,624)
Other expcnses . (52,027 (3,030
Total finance expenses (756,014) (1,210,805)
Total finance income and expenses, net 3,921,321 (24,093)
Income tax

Income tax expense:

(In Litas) 2009 2008
Current tax expense 2,494,931 9,389,910
Changc in deferred tax 830,789 (85,836)
Total income tax expense 3,325,721 9,304,074

The applicable tax rate for the year 2009 was 20%. The rate of 15% was enacted as of 1 January
2010. The effeet of the change in tax rate relating to the revalued land and buildings was
ineluded into profit or loss due to the fact that it is not significant.

23



12.

Ineome tax {continued)

Reconciliation of the effective rate:

{In Litas)

Profit before income tax

Income tax at standard tax rate
Non deductible expenses / Tax
exempt income

Chenge in unrealized temporary

differences

Effect of change in tax rafe

Current tax payable:

(In Litas)

Payable as at | January
Calculated for the year
Adjusted for the previous year

Pald

Payable as at 31 December

Deferred tax:

(In Litas)

Impairment for amounts

receivable

Accrued bonuses
Vacation reserve
Warranty provision

Stock write down to NRV

Not recognized deferred tax

asscts

Total deferred lax assets
Revaluation of land and buildings
Total deferred tax liabilities

Total deferred tax, net

AR Panevéiio Statybos Trestas
Annual financial statements

Decrease in value has been recognized due to uncerntaity of deferred tax realisation.

Change in deferred tax:

(In Litas)

Net deferred tax at 1 January
Recognised directly in equity
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Net delerred tax at 31 December

2009 2008
8,139,889 57919518
20.0% 1,627,978 15.0% 8,687,928
30.7% 2,502,423 2.5% 1,421,201
(4.1%) (332,696) (2.3%) "(1,351,716)
(5.7%) (471,984) 0.9%) 546,661
40.9% 3,325,721 16.1% 9,304,074
2009 2008
5,372,137 3,652,237
2,494,931 9,389,910
612,263 0
(8,352,734) (7,670,010)
126,597 5,372,137
2009 2008
Temporary Temporary
differences Deferred tax differences Deferred tax
15,103,856 2,265,578 6,488,154 1,297,631
902,851 135,434 1,087,118 217,424
0 0 6,368,760 1,273,752
1,289,640 193,446 [,804,644 360,929
61,394 9,209 25,541 5,108
(2,258,259) (1,266,907)
£1,430,111 1,714,517 12,131,285 2,426,257
1,714,517 2,426,257
(1,369,109) (538,320}
2009 2008
(538,320) 1,058,204
0 {1,682,360)
(830,789) 85,836
(1,369,109) (538,320)
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continucd)

An external independent valuation company UAB Matininkai, having appropriate recognized
professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and catcgory of property being
valued, valued the Company’s land and buildings on 31 December 2008. The fair values are
based on market values, being the estimated amount for whieh a property could be exchanged on
the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without compulsion. Based on the assessment of the Company’s management, taking into
consideration the markct indications of the changes of market valnes of real estate and the
calculated depreciation of buildings during the year 2009, the carrying amounts of land and
bnildings presented in the statement of financial position should not differ materially from their
fair values as at 31 December 2009.

(In Litas) 2009 2008
Depreciation included into:

Cost of sales 4,904,235 4,658,239
Administrative expenses 1,087,780 760,204
Other expenses 341,189 59,574
Total depreciation 6,333,204 5,478,017

Property, plant and equipment with a net carrying amount of 9,358,905 Litas as at 31 December
2009 are pledged to the banks (refer to Note 26). At 31 December 2009, the net carrying amount
of leased property, plant and equipinent was 7,731,011 Litas (2008: 11,286,272 Litas).

Intangible assets

{In Litas) Software Other Total
Cost

Balance at | January 2009 596,319 81,012 677,331
Additions 56,443 81,196 137,639
Disposals (1)) (29,006) (29,006)
Balance at | January 2009 652,762 133,202 785,964
Additions 8,901 0 8,901
Disposals M (116,922) (116,922)
Balance at 31 December 2009 661,663 16,280 677,943
Amortization and impairment losses

Balance at 1 January 2008 298,446 78,748 377,194
Amortization for the year 148,252 2,261 150,513
Amortisation of the assets disposed {0) (29,004) (29,004)
Balance at 1 January 2009 446,698 52,005 498,703
Amortization for the year 134,957 16,238 151,195
Amortisation of the assets disposed (0) (51,964) (51,964)
Balance at 31 December 2009 581,655 16,279 597,934
Carrying amounts

At 1 January 2009 206,064 81,197 287,261
At 31 December 2009 80,008 1 80,009

Amortization rates (in years) 3 34
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Investments in subsidiaries

(In Litas) 2009 2008

Subsidiary Ownership Cost Ownership Cost
UAB PST Investicijos 67% 21,792,300 67% 21,792,300
OQO Baltlitstroj 100% 1,177,672 100% 1,177,672
UAB Vekada 96% 776,482 96% 776,482
UAB Skydmedis 100% 500,000 100% 500,000
UAB Alinita 100% 240,000 100% 240,000
UAB Metalo Meistrai 100% 81,500 100% 81,500
SIA PS Trests 100% 13,175 100% 13,175
TOB Vilniaus Papédé 69% 10,000 69% 10,000
Impairment (13,175) (13,175)
Total investment 24,577,954 24,577,954

The Company’s subsidiary UAB PST Investicijos has the following subsidiaries:

(In Litas) 2009 2008
UAB Aieities Projektai 100% 100%
Q0O Baltevromarket 100% 100%
UAB Gélu¥és Projektal 100% 100%
UAB Kauno Erdvé 100% 100%
UAB Realtus (merged to UAB PST Investicijos) 0% 100%
UAB Sakalizkés 100% 100%
UAB Smiltyny Kalvos 100% 100%
UAB Verkiy Projektas 100% 100%
Financial information about the subsidiaries can be specified as follows:
Net profil
Net equity as (loss) for
(In Litas) Type of activities at 31/12/2009 2009
UAB PST Investieijos
(consolidated) Development of real estate (3,246,825)  (16,598,381)
000 Baltlitstroj Construetions (1,973,419} (1,316,746)
UAP Vekada Constructions: electricity instalments 5095316 19,159
UAB Skydmedis Constructions: wooden houses 843,779 4,624
UAB Alinita Constructions: conditioning equipment 219,395 {260,778}
UAB Metalo Meistrai Constructions 1,156,730 (399,593)
SIA. PS Trests Constructions (806,757) (3,700)
TUB Vilniaus Papede Development of real estatc 15,054 ¢)]

Based on the management’s estimations, the investment in UAB PST Investicijos is not impaired
taking into consideration the expected recoverable amount of this investment, whieh was based
on the valuations performed by the external independent valuation company of the real estate
projects developed by UAB PST Investicijos and its subsidiaries. A significant portion of the
recoverable ainount of the investment in UAB PST Investieijos is related to the real estate project
being developed by OO0 Baltevromarket in Kaliningrad. Following the decision of the mayor of
Kaliningrad, the land plots for the project development were provided to OO0 Baltevromarket,
which are currently rented from the municipality until 3 August 2010. OO0 Baitevromarkel is
obliged to perform preparatory works in order to obtain the permission for construetion of real
estate in these land plots. At present these preparatory works are being carried out and the
management expects that the permission for construction will be obtained.
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Other investments and amounts receivablc in one year

(In Litas) Interest rate Maturity 2009 2008
UAB PST Investicijos

(receivable) n/a n/a 10,983,035

UAB PST Investicijos (loan) 3 m VILIBOR+1,9% 20£2/05/12 1,495,197

UAB PST Investicijos {interest) 3 m VILIBOR+1,9% 2012/05/12 112,638

AB PanevéZio Keliai (Joan) 3m VILIBOR+1,9%  2011/01/11 6,153,552

Q0O Baltlistroj (loan) n/a 2011/01/30 993,313 139,673
SIA PS Trests (loan) 5,02%-7,5% 2012/01/02 12,000 6,000
Other 65,786 72,166
Total 19,815,521 217,839

The receivable amount from UAB PST Investicijos was booked after the Company has repaid the
bank loan instead of UAB PST Investicijos. No inferest is calculated for this amount. The
Company intends to increase the share capital of UAB PST Investicijos by this amount.

Inventories

(In Litas) 2009 2008
Raw materials and consumables 4.475,936 8,397,940
Goods for resalc 3,504 12,720
Write-down to net realizable value (61,394) (25,541)
Total inventories 4,418,046 5,385,119

Trade receivables

(In Litas) 2009 2008
Invoiced receivables 61,443,814 110,271,833
Accrued rcceivables in accordance to the stage of completion 1,283,548 87,798
Impairment (15,103,856) (6,488,154)
Toial trade receivables 47,623,506 103,871,477

As al 31 December 2009 aggregate costs incurrcd under eonstruction contracts in progress and
recognized profits, net of recognized losses, amounted to 119,565,223 Litas (2008: 207,840,624
Litas). Progress billings and advanccs received from customers under open construction contracts
amounted to 122,264,544 Litas (2008: 212,943,822 Litas). Billings in excess of costs incurred
and recognized profits are presented as deferred income and amounted to 2,699,321 Litas as at
31 December 2009 (2008: 5,103,198 Litas).

As at 31 December 2008, trade receivables include retentions of 8,309,051 Litas (12,972,430
Litas as at 31 December 2008) relating to construction contracts in progress.

For valuation of trade receivables refer to Note 4.
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Prepayments for current assets and other assets

Prepayments for current assels include the prepayments to sub-contractors and suppliers in
connection with the consfruction contracts in progress. Other assets mainly include prepaid taxes,
deferred expenses, etc.

Cash and cash equivalents

(In Litas) 2009 2008

Cash at bank 53,889,346 54,737,595
Cash in hand 45,333 33,042
Total cash and cash equivalents 53,934,684 54,770,637

Capital and reserves

The Company’s authorized share capital consists of 16,350,000 ordinary shares with a nominal
value of 1 Litas each. The Company’s authorized share capital is fully paid. The holders of the
ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share in the meeting of the Company and are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to time and to capital repayment in case of decrease of
the capital. There were no changes in the share capital during the year 2009,

Reserves can be specified as follows:

(In Litas) 2009 2008

Revaluation reserve 9,715,594 9,705,028
Legal reserve 1,635,030 1,635,030
Total reserves 11,350,624 11,340,058

The revaluation reserve relatcs to the revaluation of land and buildings and is equal to the
carrying amount of revaluation less the related deferred tax liability.

Legal reserve is a compulsory reserve allocated in accordance to the legislation. An annual
alloeation of at least 5% of the net profit is requircd until the reserve is not less than 10% of the
authorized share capital. The reserve cannot be distributed.

Farnings per share

(In Litas) 2009 2008

Net result for the year 4,814,168 48,615,444
Average nunber ef shares 16,350,000 16,350,000
Basic and deluted earnings per share 0.29 .97

Loans and borrowings

{In Litas) 2009 2008
Non-current liabilities 4,323,901 7,148,115
Current liabilities 2,760,113 3,522,594

Total loans and borrowings 7,084,014 10,670,709




AB Panevifio Statvhos Trestas
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Loans and borrowings (continued)

Borrowings include finance lease liabilities to UAB SEB Lizingas, UAB Swedbank Lizingas,
UAB DnB Nord Lizingas and UAB Nordea Finance for the plant and equipwnent acquired by
financial lease with a book value of 7,731,011 Litas as at 31 December 2009.

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Minimum Principal

In 2009 (in Litas) _ payments Interest amount
Payable within one year 3,053,855 293,742 2,760,113
Between one and five years 4,580,356 256,455 4,323,901
7,634,211 550,197 7,084,014

Minimum Principal

In 2008 (in Litas) payments Interest amount
Payable within one year 3,966,448 443,854 3,522,594
Belween one and five years 7,699,009 550,894 7,148,115
11,665,457 994,748 10,670,709

Warranty provision

A provision for warranties is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible
outcomes against their associated probabilities.

Change of provision for warranties is as follows:

Amount

Provision for warrauties as at 31/12/2008 1,804,644
Accrued bomuses for employees (713,690)
Acerued vacation reserve 198,686
Provision for warranties as at 31/12/2009 1,289,640
Other liabilities

(In Litas) 2009 2008
Accred vacation reserve 2,199,206 6,368,760
Accrued bonuses for employees 4,874,168 8,024,863
Payable salaries and related taxes 2,061,951 4,460,148
Deferred income in accordance to the stage of completion 2,699,321 5,103,198
QOther liabilities 1,933,384 409,282
Total other liabilities 13,768,030 24,366,251

Off-balance sheet liabilitics

The banks issued guarantees to third parties amounting to 13,910,667 Litas in connection with the
Company’s obligations under the construction contracts performed by the Company. The maturity of
these guarantees varies from 15 January 2010 to 30 September 2011. Property, plant and cquipment
with a net carrying amount of 9,358,905 Litas as at 31 December 2009, present and future cash in
account up to 20,000,000 Litas, eash in account at Swedbank AB. and the rights in connection with
the Company’s construction eontract with Tauragé municipality and UAB Tauragés Vandenys are
pledged to the banks for the-credit lines and guarantees.
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Off-balance sheet liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2009 a credit line of 15,000,000 Litas has been issued to the Company by AB
SEB Bankas with the maturity until 31 January 2010. The credit line mentioned above has not
been used by the Company as at the end of 2009.

Transactions with related parties

The Company had sales and purchase transactions during 2009/2008 with subsidiaries, parent
company AB PanevéZio keliai and with subsidiaries of AB Panevé¥io keliai. Transactions with

related parties during 2009 are as follows:

(In Litas) Type of transaction Amount
Sales in 2009:

Companies under control

UAB PST Investicijos Goods and services 95,488
00O Baitlitstroj Goods and services 418,236
UAB Metalo Meistrai Goods and services 204,631
UAB Vekada Goods and services 309,286
UAB Skydmedis Goods and services 77,050
UAB Alinta Goods and services 11,593
UAD Verkiy Projekias Goods and services 1,419
Other related companies

AB PanevéZio Keliai Goods and services 4,610,066
Purchasea in 2009:

Comparies under conirol

00O Baltlitstroj Goods and services 3,053,044
UAB Metalo Meistral Goods and services 2,146,743
UAB Vekada Goods and services 4,133,216
UAB Alinta Goods and services 602,361
UAB Skydmedis Goods and services 192,111
UAB PST Investicijos Goods and services 51,000
TOB Vilniaus Papéde Goods and services 18,744
Other related companies

AB Panevé¥io Keliai Goods and services 3,091,477
UAB Aukdtaitijos Traktas Gooda and services 17,296
UAB Zarasy Automobiliy Keliai Goods and services 26,654
UAB Sostines Gatves Goods and services 85,717
Amounts receiveble as at 31 December 2009:

Companies under conirol

UAB PST Investicijos 11,095,673
00O Baltlitstroj 517,234
UAB PST Investicijos 112,638
UAB Skydmedis 12,311
SIA PS Trests 1,379
Other related companies

AB PanevéZio Keliai 2,736,914
UAB Constructus 8,068
Amounts payable as at 31 December 2009:

Comparies under control

UAB Vekada 744,462
UAB Metalo Meistrai 115,028
UAB Alinta 127,974
Other related companies

UAB Aukdtaitijos Traktas 48,963
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Long-term loans receivable as at 31 Deeember 2009:

AB PanevéZio Keliai 6,153,552
UAB PST Investicijos 1,495,197
QOO Baltlitstroj 993313
SIA PS Trest 12,000

All transactions with related parties have been priced on an arm’s length principle,

Tfair value of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instruinent could be exehanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties on an arm’s length transaction, other than in
forced or liquidation sale. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash
flow models and option pricing models as appropriate.

Cartying ainount of trade amounts receivable, amounts payable and short-terin credit lines is
close to their fair value. The fair value of the long-term debt is based on the quoted market price
for the same or similar issues or on the current rates available for debt with the same maturity
profile. The fair value of non-current loans, borrowings and other payables with variable interest
rates approximates their carrying amounts.

The fair value of the assets and liabilities reported in the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2009 do not differ significantly from their carrying amncunts.

Subsequent events

During the Company’s board meeting held on 24 February 2010 it was decided to propose to the
Board of UAB PST Investicijos to eall the shareholders® meeting concerning the increase of the
share capital of UAB PST Investicijos by the newly issued shares to be paid by additional cash
and in-kind contributions resulting in the capitalization of the receivable amount paid by the
Company to AB DnB Nord Bankas instead of UAB PST Investicijos (see Note 16).

There were no other subsequent events which would have an effeet on the annual financial
statements or require a disclosure.

Managing Director Dalius Gesevidius
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PANEVEZIO STATYBOS TRESTAS AB
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2009

1. ACCOUNTING PERIOD COVERED BY THE ANNUAL REPORT

The report is covering the year 2009.

2. THE 1SSUER AND ITS CONTACT DETAILS

Name of issuer

Authorised capital

Address of registered office
Telephone

Fax

E-mail

Legal-organisational form
Date and place of registration
Registration No.

Company Register code
VAT code

Administrator of Legal Entity
Register

Website

Public limited liability company Panevezio statybos
trestas

16,350,000 Litas
P. Puzino Str. 1, LT-35173 PanevéZys, Lithuania
(+370 45) 505 503
{(+370 45) 505 520
st ét.lt
Publie limited liability company
30 October 1993, Panevézys City Board
AB 9376
147732969
L.T477329610
State Enterprise Centre of Registers

Www.pst.It

3. PRINCIPLE NATURE OF ACTIVITIES OF THE ISSUER

The main area of activities of the company and its subsidiaries (Group) is designing and
construction of buildings, structures, equipment and communications and other objects for
various applieations in and outside Lithuania, real estate development. In addition to the above
activities, the company is engaged in rent of premises and mechanisms, resale of utility and

telecommunication services.

d. CONTRACTS WITH INTERMEDIARY OF PUBLIC TRADING IN SECURITIES

On 7 February 2006 the Agreement No. 3792 was signed with the Public Limited Liability
Company DnB NORD bankas located at Basanavi€iaus Str. 26, Vilmus, by which it has been
assigned to perform accounting of the issued securities and accounting/record keeping of the

personal security accounts.
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5. DATA ON TRADING IN SECURITIES OF THE ISSUER IN REGULATED MARKETS

The ordinary registered shares of the PanevéZio statybos trestas AB, totalling 16,350,000 pes.,
the nominal value of each being one Litas, have been on the Official Trading List of the Vilnius

Stock Exchange (VSE) since 13 July 2006.

Company share price variation at VSE in 2007 throughk 2009
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Last share price as of ; . , Last share price as of
37 Dec. 2008 Highest share price Lowest share price 37 Dec. 2009
1.5 J.05 i16 379
Capitalization, min, Lt
2007 2008 2009
255.06 24.53 61.97

6. FAIR REVIEW OF THE COMPANY’S POSITION, PERFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT OF
THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS, DESCRIPTION OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES IT FACES

In the year 2009 after rapid economical growth, the entire economy of the country was hard hit

by recession. The hard times in economy havc inevitably affected both Panevésio statybos

trestas AB and PST Company Group. In 2009 there was a significant decrease in income for the

Group — down to 184.7 mln. Litas and for the company — down to 167.7 mln, Litas, Compared

to the last year the income decreased by 3.2 times. Last year the company had considered the

situation in the declining construction market, revised all its operating expenses and with the
help of rational decisions made on sites made a profit of 4.8 mln. Litas. The gross profit margin
amounting 16.6 percents (15.9 percents in 2008) shows that in case of significant ineome
decrease the company managed to withstand losing performance. The loss of PST Group in the
amount of 15.5 mln. Litas was influenced by negative changes in the real estate market. Due to
reduced possibilities in project development finaneing, the subsidiary of PST, PST investicijos,
suspended development of most of the projects by its eompanies in 2009, thus staying with loan

management and tax expenses.

In 2009 the company maintained strong balance; high liquidity and low debt level. PST Group
reduced its financial liabilities by 14 mln. Litas. Book money amounts 56 min. Litas, the
liquidity ratio of the group is 1.7 and that of tﬁe company is 2.11, therefore there should be no
problems with likely insolvency. Equity capital of the company makes 68 % of total assets and
that of PST Group - 47 %, and this is considered a good indicator.

Last year the projeets of RokiSkis Waste Water Treatment Plant Reconstruction and PanevézZys
Region Waste Handling System Development were completed. In 2009 PST was awarded the
gold medal at the contest Lithuanian Product of the Year for the construction of PanevéZys
Arena.
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Market members value the company as cxperienced builder of large and technologically
complieated objects. Such approach of customers has been achieved in the result of hard work
and continuous internal improvement of the company — qualified and experienced employees
work for the company, the company has a few licences and certificates attesting that
management of the company is done in a qualitative manner and meets the requiremcnts of the

European standards.

The company paid great attention to the quality of works carried out, environment prolection and
safety. The company has suecessfully implemented and is working in accordance with the
quality managcment system LST EN ISO 9001:2008 and environment management system LST
EN ISO 14001:2005. To ensure prevention of accidents at work, occupational safety and health
violations of organizational manner in the company and reduce the number of occupational
diseases the company has implemented the occupational safety and hcalth managecment system

meeting the requircments of the international standard BS OHSAS 18001:2007 (LST 1977:2008).

In 2008 thc National Accreditation Bureau of Lithuania rencwed saccreditation for the
Construction Laboratory of the company for 5 more years in accordance with LST EN ISO/IEC
17025:2005 thus granting the right to perform tcsts with construction materials.

Valuable experience in the construction of complicated objects was gained in the cowse of the
ycars. The activities are widcly developed in terms of both — scrvices and geography because
projects are implemented not only in Lithuania. There are subdivisions in such cities of the

Russian Federation as Cherepovcts and Kaliningrad.
Risk factors related to the company activifies:

e General dccline in construction market;

» Drop in construction prices;

o Extremcly increased and intense competition;
e Damping;

e Delays in paymcents made by customers;

o Stringent credit terms at the banks;

¢ Black economy.
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7. INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

As of 31 December 2009 the Company Group of PanevezZio statybos trestas AB included the

following companies:
Share
Subsidiaries Type of activities controlled Registered address
(per cent)
Skydmedis UAB Production of wood 100 Pramonés Str. 5,
constructions Panevézys
Tel.: +370 45 583341
Metalo meistrai UAB Production of metal 100 Tinkly Str. 7,
constructions Panevézys,
Tel. 8 45 464677
Vekada UAB Electrical inslallation works 96 Marijony Str. 36,
Panevezys
Tel.: +370 45 461311
Vilniqus papéde TUB Construetion works 69 Svitrigailos Str. 8,
Vilnius
Tel.: +370 5 2609405
Alinita UAB Air conditioning equipment 100 Dubysos Str. 31,
Klaipéda
Tel.: +370 46 340363
PS TRESTS SIA Construction 100 Vietalvas Str. 5, Riga
BALTILSTROLI 000 Construction 100 Sovetskij Ave. 43,
Kaliningrad
Tel.: 0074012350435
PST Investicijos UAB Real estate development 67 Konstitucijos Ave. 7,
Vilnius
Tel.:+370 52728213
Subsidiaries of PST investicijos UAB:
Ateities projekiai UAB Real estate development and 100 Konstitucijos Ave. 7,
sales Vilnius
Sakalitkes UAB Real estate development and 100 Konstitueijos Ave. 7,
sales Vilnius
Kauno erdvé UAB Real estate development and 100 Konstitucijos Ave. 7,
sales Vilnius
Geluzes profekiai UAB Real estate development and 100 Konstitueijos Ave. 7,
sales Vilnius
Verkiy projekias UAB Real estate development and 100 Konstitucijos Ave. 7,
sales Vilnius
Novigo UAB Reel estate development and 50 Konstitueijos Ave.7,
sales Vilnius
ISK Baltevromarket 000 Construetion investment 100 Sovetskij Ave. 43,
company Kaliningrad
Smiltyniy kalvos UAB Real estate development and 100 Konstitucijos Ave.7,
sales Vilnius
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The financial statements of the PS Trests SIA were not consolidated in the financial reporting of

the Group due to their insignificance to the Group.

Skydmedis UAB (company code 148284718) was established and began its activities on 17 June
1999. The main activity of the company is fabrication of wood structures and joinery for
construction purposes, cutting and planing of wood, wholesale and rctail in construction

materials, production of pallets, stands and other wooden items for loading, building outfit.

In 2009 the income of the company amounted 2,613 thousand Litas and the company eamed 4.6

thousand Litas of net profit.

The main activity indicators of Skydmedis UAB are as follows:

o | . 2009 | 2008 | 2007
Income from sales, thousands Lt 2613.6 5695.7 5796.4
Gross profit, thousands Lt 483.4 1093.0 968.8
Net profit, thousands Lt 4.6 78.8 -129.0
Gross profitability 18.5% 19.2% 16.7%
Net profitability 0.2% 1.4% -2.2%
Return on equity (ROE) 0.55 9.39 -16.96
Current liquidity ratio 23| 196 1.43
Acid test (Quick) ratio 2.0 1.37 0.68

At the end of 2009 Skydmedis UAB had 42 employees. The share capital is divided into one
thousand ordinary shares the value of one share being 500 Litas. The main share holder is

PanevéZio statybos trestas AB holding 100 % of shares.

Metalo meistrai UAB (company code 148284860) was founded on 16 June 1999 and started its
activity on 1 July 1999. The company is engaged in fabrication of various metal structures and
their elements; another business line is rent of smali-size scaffolding. At the end of 2009 the

company had 31 employees.

The main aelivity indicators of Metalo meistrai UAB are as follows:

\ | 2009 | 008 | 2007
Income from sales, thousands Lt 2519 9017.2 9215.6
Gross profit, thousands Lt -2.4 1109.7 1228.0
Net profit, thousands Lt -404) 253.6 466.3
Gross profitability -0.1% 12.3% 13.3%
Net profitability -15.8% 2.8% 5.1%
Return on equity (ROE) -34.55 16.29 35.80
Current liquidity ratio 1.99 1.48 0.92
Acid test (Quick) ratio 0.73 0.94 0.49
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There were no ehanges in authorized share eapital and the share holder strueture, i.e. as before,
the share capital totalling 500,000 Litas is divided into 1 000 ordinary shares the value of one
share being 500 Litas. The main share holder is PanevéZio statybos trestas AB holding 100 % of

shares.

Vekada UAB (company code 147815824) was establishcd on 1 January 1963 and had the name
of Elektros montavimo valdyba (Electrical Installation Department), later on 16 May 1994 it was
re-registered as Vekada UAB. The main activities of the company are electrical instaliation

works on subcontracts. At the end of 2009 the company had 57 employees.

The main activity indicators of Vekada UAB arc as follows:

e | 3009 | 2008 | 2007
Income from sales, thousands Lt 94943 17034.5 10282.9
Gross profit, thousands Lt 1213.2 3786.6 1667.3
Net profit, thousands Lt 19.2 1652.0 531.3
Gross profitability 12.8% 22.2% 16.2%
Net profitability 0.2% 9. 7% 5.2%
Return on equity (ROE) 0.38 32.83 18.29
Current liquidity ratio 3.17 2.35 3.68
Acid test (Quick) ratio 2.87 1.97 3.05

During the accounting year therc were no changes in the authorised shear capital of the company
and structure of the share holders, i.e. as beforc, the share capital amounting 211,488,000 Litas is
divided into 52,872 ordinary shares the value of one share being 4 Litas. The main sharc holder

is PaneveZio statybos trestas AB holding 95.6 % of shares, other part is hold by legal persons.

Alinite UAB (company code 141619046) was established on 8 December 1997. The main
activities of the company are ventilation, air-conditioning and heating systenis in buildings.
District heating supply units and boiler houses; indoor water supply sewerage and firc fighting

systcms. Pump stations, In 2009 the company had 20 employees.
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The main activity indicators of Alinita UAB are as follows:

Thome fromi sales, thousands Lt 1173 | 21286 | 2661.6
Gross profit thousands Lt 499| 571.0| 1514
Net profit, thousanids It 260.8 660 1973
Gross profitability 43% |  268% | 28.5%
Net profitability | -22.3% 3.0%|  7.4%
Retumonequity (ROE) . |  -118.86 13.75 47.63
Current liquidity ratio 131 3.74 1.80
Acid test (Quick) ratio 1.18 3.49 1.63

The share capital of the company totailing 10,000 Litas is divided into 100 ordinary shares the
value of one share being 100 Litas. In 2004 PanevézZio statybos trestas AB acquired 100 % of
shares.

Vilniaus papédé TUB (company code 12545197) is the general partnership founded in 2000.
The partnership was established for the period of building of thc Royal Palace and will continue
its activities until the projeet is fully completed. The partnership does not make any profit from
its activities (except interest calculated for the balance of the bank account), and its expenses are
distributed among the partnership members in proportion to their activities carried out. The
capital of the company is comprised of contributions of its founders totalliug 14,500 Litas.
10,000 Litas accounting for 69 per eents was the contribution of Panevézio statybos trestas AB.

Other founders are also legal persons.

Baltlitstroij 000 (company code 236006) was founded and started its activities on 20 Oetober
2000. The main activity of the company is construction works. In 2009 the company had 17

employees.

The main activity indicators of BALTLITSTROL OOQ are as follows:

R | 2009 | 2008
Income from sales, thousands Lt 12219 | 289953
Gross profit, thousands Lt 224.5 2456.0
Net profit, thousands Lt -1317 2064.4
Gross profitability 1.8% 8.5%
Net profitability -10.8% 71%
Current liquidity ratio 0.80 1.26
Acid test (Quick) ratio 0.78 1.26

The authorised capital of the company amounts 12,000 thousand Roubles, 100 % of shares are
held by Panevézio statybos irestas AB.
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PST investicijos UAB (company code 124665689) was founded on 23 December 1998. The
main activity of the company is preparation and sales of real estate. On 31 December 2009 the
company group of PST investicijos UAB consisted of the parent company PST investicijos UAB
and the following subsidiary companies: Sakaliskés UAB, GeluZés projeitai UAB, Kauno erdvé
UAB, Smiltyny kalvos UAB, Ateities projektai UAB, Verkiy projektas UAB, Novigo UAB,
Baltevromarket Q00 ISK.

The main activity indicators of PST investicijos UAB are as follows:

- | 2000 | 2008 | 2007
Income from sales, thousands Lt -192.3 3896 | 17000.0
Gross profit, thousands Lt -380 2404 | 12414.0
Net profit, thousands Lt -16598 -25970 4078.0
Current liquidity ratio 1.26 10.13 27.64
Acid test (Quick) ratio 1.23 9.91 26.77

The main share holders of the company are PanevéZio stafybos trestas AB {66.83 %) and
Panevézio keliai AB (24.68 %). The remaining part of shares is hold by scveral legal persons
(8.49 %). As of 31 December 2009, the authorized capital of the companylis 37,267,900 Litas
and it is divided into 372,679 registered ordinary shares the nominal value of one share being
100 Litas.

8. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL AND NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE, INFORMATION
RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND EMPLOYEE MATTERS

In 2009 the income of the group decrcased by 3.2 tiines compared to 2008 and amounted 184.7
min. Litas (586.1 min. Litas in 2008). The income of the company decreased by 3.3 times down
to 167.7 min. Litas (558.9 min. Litas in 2008). During the accounting year the PST Group
incurred losscs in the amount of 15.5 mln, Litas (24.184 mln. Litas profit in 2008). In 2009 the

net profit of the company was 4.8 mln. Litas, whereas in 2008 it was 48.6 mln. Litas.
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Income and net profit variation for the company:
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All financial data in the present annual report have been calculated following the International

Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) and expressed in the national currency of Lithuania - the

Litas (Lt).
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The results (thousands Litas) of the parent company and the Company Group of Paneveéiio

statybos trestas AB for the years 2007 through 2009 are as follows:

Group Company
Year Year Year Items Year Year Year
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
184.685 | 586.086 | 516.976 | Income 167.704 | 558903 | 487.261
154.896 | 485.422 | 445.027 | Cost 139.789 | 469.762 | 432.725
29.789 | 100.664 71.949 | Gross profit 27915 89.140 54.536
16.13 17.18 13.97 | Cross profit margin 16.65 15.95 11.19
(per cent)
Profit before taxes,
-0.003 | 44.472 46.4) | interest, depreciation 15.328 64.386 | 35.402
and amortisation
EBITDA
-8.38 4.1 591 | Nerprofit margin 287 8.7 5.1
_(per cent)
-0.61 2 178 | £rofitper share 0.29 297 1.52
(Litas)
Return on equity
-15.31 21.53 40.4 (vercent) (ROE) 3.86 40.16 35.76
Average return on
_ assets or average
7.29 8.47 10.94 profitability of assets 2.61 20.80 11.55
(ROA)
Return on investmeni
-13.82 17.41 22.58 (ROJ) 3.65 36.71 33.05
1.71 1.66 17p | Current liguidity 211 17 1.19
ratio
0.56 0.39 031 Cash ratio 1.03 0.54 0.28
6.15 7.1 5 |Bookvalueof 7.63 7.40 425
a share
Ratio of share price
6.2 0.7 876 | A prafit (P/E) 12.90 0.50 103
Ratio of share price
0.62 0.21 3.06 | 2 book value @/BY) 0.50 0.20 3.67

Referring to business segments, the main income was from building and construction activities.

In 2009 the income of the group from the building and construction activitics totalled 98 %, the

made products and other income amounted to 2 %. The group had no income from real estate, In

2008 the corrcsponding figures were as follows: construction and installation — 97.7 %, real

estate — 0.7 % and other activities — 1.6 %.
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Group Company
Year Year Year Year Year Year

( tho_usands Lt) _ 2009_ 2008_ 2007 . 2_009__ _ 20_0_8 2_0_07 _
Construction works 181.17 | 57253 | 49021 | 167.70 | 558.90 | 487.26
Redl estate -0.19 3.90 17.00
Pi?tjdiicts prodiced 2.01 421 4.79
Other 1.70 545 4.97

110,0% -

90,0% |

70,0%

50,0%

30,0% oo% 2%

10,0% "

~10,0%

2008 m. 2008 m. l 2007 m.
Grupé ‘
‘F_"l Construction works @ Real estate @ Other @ ‘
Income from main activity (thousands Lt) by geographical segments:
Group Company
Year Year Year Year Year Year
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Lithuania 176.97 550.23 500.32 160.30 526.35 47417
Russian Federation 7.40 32.55 13.10 7.40 32.55 13.10
Germany, Ireland 0.00 0.27 0.21
Scandinavian counfrics 0.31 3.04 3.35

In the year 2009 the main activity of the company was performed in Lithuania and made 95.6 %

of all works carried out by the company (94.2 % in 2008). The income of the group from the

works performed inside Lithuania made 95.8 % of the income whereas in 2008 it was 93.9 %.
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9. IMPORTANT EVENTS HAVING OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE PRECEDING
FINANCIAL YEAR

There were no important events sinee the end of the preceding year.

10. PERFORMANCE PLANS AND FORECASTS OF THE COMPANY

The coming year is likely not to be easy both for the company and the whole construction sector.
At present the largest problem is unwillingness of banks to credit projects and negative
tendencies in the tenders arranged by the potential customers where the construction companies

seeking to win the tender at any price often offer unreasonably low project implementation costs
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which later on do not allow ensuring the project quality, and as a matter of fact jeopardise the

project completion.

PanevéZio statybos trestas AB is planning to make a reach of good rcsults in the year 2010 and
exceed the sales level of 2009. Though the economical background in the country and
construction sector is not favourable, next year we will fry to maintain stability by proceeding
with the already started activities, looking for possibilities for new project implementation a.nﬂ

striving for the goal to remain the largest construction company in Lithuania.

11. AUTHORISED CAPITAL OF THE ISSUER AND ITS STRUCTURE

As of 31 December 2009 the authorised capital of the company amounted to 16,350,000 Litas,
divided into 16,350,000 ordinary registered shares (ORS) the nominal value of each share being
1.00 Lt. All shares are non-certificated and fully paid. The proof of ownership is the record in the
securities accounts.

The composition of the issuer’s authorised eapital is as follows:

Tvpe of shares Number of Nominal Total nominal Issuance
P shares (pcs.)  value (Lt)  value (Lt) code
Ordinary registered shares (ORS) 16,350,000 1 16,350,000 101446

12. INFORMATION ON THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE ISSUER

The number of shareholders holding or controlling more than 5 percents of the authorised capital

of the company as of 31 December 2009 was 1982:

Number of Percentage of  Percentage of
, ordinary Percentage votes granted votes held
E:;r:hcdtyg:rrzgsltlerrleagl:d(;g:spany registered of _ by the shares  together with
code in the’Register of ? shares hcld on au t_honsed held on the persons
Enterprises) property capital held property aeting
ownership right (%) ownership right together
(pes.) (%) )
PanevéZio keliai AB
S. Kerbedzio g. 7, PanevéZys, 8,138,932 49.78 49.78 -
Company code 147710353,
Bank of New York as custodian or
trustee
One Wall Street, New York, NY 1,327,137 8,12 8,12 -
10286, USA
GSP181305
Skandinaviska Enskildas Banken
clients, Liivalaia 8, 15040 Tallinn, 1,294,157 7.92 7.92 N

Estonia,
502032-9081
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Vote distribution as of 31 DEC.2009

34,19%

49.78%

)

7.92%—/

8,12%

PaneveZio keliat AB Bank of New York

0O Skandinaviska Enskildas Banken clients @ Other shareholders

None of the shareholders of the issuer has any special control rights. All shareholders have equal

rights prescribed by Section 4 of the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania.

The number of shares carrying votes at the general meeting of shareholders of Panevezio

statybos trestas AB is 16,350,000.

13. EMPLOYEES

The number of employees in the Group as of 31 December 2009 was 1030, in the company —
B857.

Average number Year 2009 Year 2008

of employees Group | Company | Group | Company
Management 26 8 39 12
Specialists 271 222 321 242
Workers 861 745 1023 875
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1200+

1023

Group [
2009

Company

Group

2008

& Management W Speclalists ‘
W, r

‘ Company ‘

Education lcvel of the Company employees for the end of the period:

Groups of Payroll Higher Higher non- Community | Secondary | Incomplete
employees number university university college education | secondary
level education education education
education
Management 29 24 0 5 0 0
Specialists 261 182 12 50 16 1
Workers 740 13 3 109 486 129
Average gross wages:
Year 2009 Year 2008
Average wages
Group Company | Group | Company
Management 7790 12971 10366 20096
Specialists 3823 4146 5425 5808
Workers 1896 1973 3135 3161
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The deerease in wages was eonditioned by the drop of construetion prices and reduction in the

scope of work.

The labour contracts do not include any speeial rights or obligations of employees or some part

of them,

In 2009 the company paid much attention to qualification improvement. Training in the company

is done in four directions using:

1. Services of Lithuanian Builders Association (means of EU Structural Funds).
2. Serviees of training arranging institutions (external training).
3. Services of higher education institutions (employee studies).

4, Internal human resourccs and technical basis (internal training).
14. PROCEDURE FOR AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE ISSUER

The Articles of Association of thc Company may bc amended on by the General Meeling of
Shareholdcrs by at least 2/3 majority vote of the total votes of the shareholders attending the
meeting. The resolution amending the Articles of Association shall be adoptcd in the procedure

set forth in Articles 27 or 30 of the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania.
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15. MANAGEMENT BODIES OF THE ISSUER

Referring to the Articles of Assoeiation of PanevéZio statybos trestas AB, the management
bodies of the company are the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board and the Managing

Director. The Supervisory Couneil shall not be formed in the Company.

The eompetenee of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall not be different from that of the

eompetence speeified in the Law on Companies.

The Board of the Company consisting of five members shall be elected by the General Meeting
of Shareholders for a period not longer than 4 years. At present there are four members in the
Board. The procedure of electing and dismissing the members of the Board shall not different

from that prescribed by the Law on Companies.

The Board is led by the Chairman of the Board. The Board shall elect the Chairman from the

members of the Board.

The Board shall elect and dismiss the Head of the Company — Managing Director, fix his salary,
set other terms and conditions in the employment contract with him, approve his job description,

give incentives and impose penalties.

The Head of the Company shall be the single-person management body of the company in

charge to organise current business activities of the company based on the authority granted.
The Board:

REMIGIJUS JUODVIRSIS — the Chairman of the Board. No membership in the capital of the

company. Membership in the activities or capital of the companies below:

COMPANY NAME CAPACITY Oﬁ%ﬂiﬁgs CAPITAL% VOTES, %
TERTIUS UAB 704,638 80 80
PANEVEZIO KELIAI AB Member of the Board 531,675 28.47 28.47
LAUKTUVES JUMSUAB Member of the Board 11,069 50.15 50.15
POKSTAS UAB 261 50 50
KLOVAINIU SKALDA AB 203,526 3.78 3.78
GELBERA UAB Member of the Board 4 34 34
KELTECHA UAB Member of the Board
EMULTEKA UAB 14 14.0 14.0
GUSTONIU ZOT UAB Member of the Board 18,027 49.04 49.04
SPECIALIZUQOTA
KOMPLEKTAVIMO 21 490 9,29 9,29
VALDYBA AB
IGNALINOS STATYBA UAB Member of the Board 91,351 1793 37.93
TAMSUMA UAB Chairman of the Board 1,467 3334 33.34
NAUJASIS UZUPIS UAB Chairman of the Board
PANEVEZYS UAB Member of the Board 157,191 49.98 49.98
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PANEVEZIO STATYBOS Chairman of the Board 0 0 0
‘TRESTAS AB

PANODENTUAB Member of the Board

PST INVESTICIJOS UAB Member of the Board 16,407 4.4 4.4

PAKNOVUS UAB Member of the Board 35 35 35

KIRTIMU AUTOTRANSPORTAS Member of the Board -

AB

CONSTRUCTUS UAB Member of the Board 1,669 4.5 4.5

VILNIAUS VAIZDAS UAB Member of the Board 50 50 50

CONVESTUS UAB Vice-President, 50,000 50 50
Chairman of the Board

UPES SLENIS UAB 810 18 18

1969 bonds
ALPROKAUAB Chairman of the Board

Terms of offiee: Oetober 2006 through Oetober 2010

No previous convictions.

GVIDAS DROBUZAS — the Member of the Board member. No membership in the capital of the

company. Membership in the activities or capital of the companics below:

NUMBER
COMPANY NAME CAPACITY OF CAPITAL ;OTES
SHARES
PANEVEZIO KELIAI AB Chairman of the Board 529,861 28.33 28.33
LAUKTUVES JUMS UAB Member of the Board 11,001 49.85 49.85
POKSTAS UAB Director 261 50.0 50.0
KELTECHA UAB
KLOVAINIU SKALDA AB 203,129 3.77 3.77
GELBERA UAB Member of the Board 34 34 34
EMULTEKA UAB 12 12.0 12.0
GUSTONIU ZUTUAB Member of the Board 18,028 49,04 49.04
IGNALINOS STATYBA UAB Member of the Board 91,351 37.93 37.93
TAMSUMA UAB Member of the Board 1,467 33.34 33.34
PANEVEZIO STATYBOS Member of the Board - - -
TRESTAS AB
PANEVEZYS UAB Member of the Board 157,225 49.98 49.98
SPECIALIZUOTA 21,470 9.28 928
KOMPLEKTAVIMO VALDYBA
AB
PST INVESTICIJOS UAB Chairman of the Board, 12,644 2.9 29
Director
PAKNOVUS UAB Member of the Board
CONSTRUCTUSUAB Chairman of the Board 1,669 4.5 4.5
NAUJASIS UZUPISUAB Member of the Board
VILNIAUS VAIZDAS UAB Chairman of the Board 50 50 50
CONVESTUS UAB President, 50,000 50 50
Member of the Board
Shares of UPES SEENIS UAB 310 18 18
1969 bonds
of Upes
slenis UAB
ALPROKAUAB ' Member of the Board
RYT{] SKIRSTOMIEJI TINKLAT 5,000

AB
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Terms of office: October 2006 through October 2010

No previous convictions

IRMA ABRAMAVICIENE — the Member of the Board. Membership in the capital of the

company below:
NUMBER CAPITAL VOTES
COMPANY NAME CAPACITY OF SHARES % %
CONVESTUS UAB Internal auditor - - N

Terms of office: April 2008 through October 2010

No previous convictions

VILIUS GRAZYS — the Member of the Board. No membership in the capital of the company.

Membership in the aetivities or capital of the companics below:

NUMBER CAPITAL VOTES
COMPANY NAME CAPACITY OF SHARES % o,
AKVALDA UAB 500 33,33 33,33
EMULTEKA UAB 11 11 11
BASSUAB 40 40 40
PANEVEZIO STATYBOS TRESTAS AB  Member of the Board
PANEVEZIO KELIAI AB Member of the Board 101735 5.45 5.45

Terms of office: October 2006 through October 2010

No previous convictions

ARTORAS BUCAS — the Member of the Board. No membership in the capital of the company.

NUMBER OF CAPITAL VOTES
COMPANY NAME CAPACITY SHARES % o
DVARCIONIU KERAMIKA AB Shareholder 356 0.0036 0.0036
AUKSTAITIJOS TRAKTAS UAB Member of the
Supervisory Board
Member of the Board

PANEVEZIO KELIAI AB

Terms of office: October 2006 through October 2010

No previous convictions

Administration:
DALIUS GESEVICIUS - Head of the Company Administration, Managing Direetor. Holds 15
shares of the Company. University education (VISI, 1984, construction engineering).

No previous convictions.
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DANGUOLE SIRVINSKIENE — Chief Accountant of the Company. Holds no shares of the

Company. University Education (LZUA, 1983, accounting- economics).

No previous eonviction.

Information on money amounts during the accounting period (Litas):

Board of the Company
Total caleulated amount 1247009
Average per member 249402
Head of the Chicf
Company Accountant
Calculated tnoney amount 289331 93227

16. ALL MATERIAL AGREEMENTS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS A PARTY AND WHICH WOULD
COME INTO EFFECT, BE AMENDED OR TERMINATED IN CASE O CHANGE IN THE
ISSUER‘S CONTROL, ALSO THEIR IMPACT EXCEPT THE CASES WHERE THE
DISCLOSURE OF THE NATURE OF THE AGREEMENTS WOULD CAUSE SIGNIFICANT

DAMAGE TO THE ISSUER.

None

17. ALL AGREEMENTS OF THE ISSUER AND THE MEMBERS OF ITS MANAGEMENT BODIES
OR THE EMPLOYEE AGREEMENTS PROVIDING FOR A COMPENSATION IN CASE OF THE
RESIGNATION OR IN CASE THEY ARE DISMISSED WITHOUT DUE REASON OR THEIR
EMPLOYMENT IS TERMINATED IN VIEW OF THE CHANGE OF CONTROL OF THE ISSUER

None

18. INFORMATION ON SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE RELATED PARTIES

All transactions between the related parties are provided in the Annual Financial Statement.

19. INFORMATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The information regarding complianee with the corporate governance code is presented in the

Appendix 1 to the Annual Report.
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20. PUBLICLY DISCLOSED INFORMATION

Title of announcement Category of Language Date
anuouucement

g{}%l;mmary Results of PST Group for the Interim information Lt, En | 26 Feb. 2010
Regarding Obligatory Non-Competitive Notification on material Lt En| 17 Dee. 2009
Formal Offer event
Financial Statement for the 3rd quarter of . .
2009 of Panevéio statybos trestas AB Interim information Lt,En | 30 Nov.2009
Results of PST Group for Nine Months of | Notification on material Lt, En | 30 Nov. 2009
2009 event
Mandatory Takeover BID Other information Lt,En | 30 Oct. 2009
Draft Resolution of the Extracrdinary Notification on material
General Meeting of the Sharcholders event Lt, En | 11 Sept. 2009
Draft Resolution of the Extraordinary Notification on matcrial
General Meeting of the Shareholders event Lt En | 1 Sept. 2009
Interim Report for the 6 months of 2009 Interim information Lt, En | 25 Aug. 2009
Results of PST Group for First Half of the | Notification on material It En | 25 Aug. 2009
Year 2009 event
Convening of Extraordinary General Notification on material
Meeting of the Shareholders event Lt En | 7 Aug. 2009
Panevezio statybos trestas AB Will Install Notification on material
Water Supply and Waste Water Network event Lt, En | 29 May 2009
in Siauliai
Financial Statement for the 1st Quarter of Notification on material
2009 of Panevédio statybos trestas AB event Lt, En | 28 May 2009
Performance Results for the First Quarter Notification on material I+ En| 28 May 2009
of 2009 event
Resolutions of the Reconvened General Notification on material
Meeting of the Sharcholders event Lt, En |15 May 2009
Reconvening of Annual General Meeting Notification on material ,
of the Shareholders event Lt, En | 27 April 2009
The General Meeting of PanevéZio Notification on material .
statybos trestas AB Did Not Take Place event LG En |- 24 Aril 2009
Audited Company and Consolidated . . .
Financial Statement for 2008 Annual information Lt, En | 24 April 2009
Draft Resolution of the Annual General Notification on material .
Meeting of the Shareholders event Lt, En | 14 April 2009
The Sharcholder of Panevézio statybos
trestas AB, Panevéfio keliai AB, and Notifieation on material )
Other Legal Persons Are Supposed to event Lt En | 7 April 2009
Present a Formal Offer
PanevéZio statybos trestas AB Will Build Notification on material Lt En 26 March
Waste Water Treatment Plant in Taurapé event ? 2009
Annual General Meeting of the Notification on material LLE 26 March
Shareholders event » o0 2009
Non-Audited Financial Statements of
Panevégio statybos trestas AB for the year Interim information Lt,En | 9 Mareh 2009
2008
Income of PST Group Increased by 13.4 Notification on material Lt En | 27 Feb. 2009

Percents in 2008

event
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All notices of Panevéiio statybos trestas AB to be made public in accordanee with the legal
requirements are announced following the timelines preseribed by the laws and legal acts of the
Republie of Lithuania. Notices of material events of the Company are presented to the Securities
Commission of the Republie of Lithuania, Vilnius Stock Exchange, information disclosurc and
disseminations system OMX Comparny News Service and published on the webpage of the

Company.

Managing Director Dalius Gesevitius
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Disclosure form concerning the compliance with the Governance Code for the
companies listed on the regulated market

The public limited liability company ,, Panevézio statybos trestas ", following Article 21 paragraph 3 of the Law on
Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and item 20.5 of the Trading Rules of the Vilnius Stock Exchange, discloses
its eompliance with the Governanee Code, approved by the VSE for the companies listed on the regulated market,
and its speeific provisions. In the event of nen-compliance with the Code or with certain provisions thereof, it must
be specified which provisions are not complied with and the reasons of non-compliance.

YESMNO
PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS Mot COMMENTARY

APPLICAELE

Principle I: Basic Provisions

The overriding objective of a company should be to operate in common interests of all the shareholders by optimizing over lime
shareholder value.

1.1. A company should adopt and make public the Yes The company’s sirategy and objectives are made public in the
company’s development strategy and objectives by clearly websile hitp//www.pst.lt and notiees for the ¥ilnius Slock
declaring how the compeny intends to meet the interests of Exchange and in the periodic notices to the BNS news ageney,
its shareholders and optimize shareholder value. notices in the newspapers, at (he press conferenees.

12. All management bodies of a company should act in Yes

furtherance of the declared strategie objeclives in view of
the need to optimize sharcholder value.

1.3, A eompany’s supervisory and management bodies Yes The board of the company is responsible not only for the
should aet in elose co-operation in order to attain maximum sirategic management of the company but also analyses and
benefit for the company and its shareholders. evaluates the material on all ilems of the company aclivities

presented by the managers: implementation of activity
strategy, activity arrangement, financial status, etc.

1.4. A company’s supervisory and management bodies Yes
should ensure that the rights and interests of persons other
than the company’s sharcholders (c.g. employecs, creditors,
suppliers, clienis, local community), participating in or
conneeted with the eompany’s operation, are duly respected.

Principle II: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure the strategic guidance of the company, the effeetive oversight of the company’s
management badies, an appropriate balance and distribution of lunetians between the eompany’s bodies, protection of the
shareholders’ interests.
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2.1, Besides obligatory bodies provided for in the Law on
Companiez of the Republic of Lithuania — a general
shareholders’ meeting and 1he chief executive officer, it is
recommended that & company should set up both a collegial
supervisory body and a collegial managemecnt body. The
setting up of collegial bedies for supervision and
managentent facilitates clear separation of management and
supervisory funetions in the company, accouniability and
control on the parl of the chief executive officer, which, in
ils turn, Iransparent
management process.

facilitate a more efficient and

The collegial management body — 1he board and one-petson
managemen! body — managing director are set up in the
company. The collegial supervisory body — supervisory board
is not formed.

2.2. A collegial management body is responsible for the
sirategic management of the conpany and performs other
key funelions of corporate povernance. A collegial
supervisory body is responsible for the effective supervision
of the company’s managemeni bodigs.

No

The supervision of the eompany’s aclivilies and the
responsibility and control of the chief execulive officer are
ensured by the board analyzing and evaluating the malerial on
all itemns of the company aclivities presented by the ehief
exccutive officer.

2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one collegial
body, it is recommended ihint it should be a supervisory
body, ie. the supervisory board. In such a case, the
supervisary board is responsible for the effective monitoring
of the functions performed by the company’s chief
execulive officer.

No

Oue collegial management body is formed — itie board that
effeetively supervises the functions performed by the
company's chief executive officer.

2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be clected by the
gencral shareholders’ meeting should ba sct up and should
act in the manner defined in Principles 11T and IV, Where a
company should decide not to sci up a collegial supervisory
body but rather a collegial management body, i.e. the board,
Principkes IH and [V should apply to the board as long as
that does nol contradict the essence and purpose of this
body.'

Yes

2.5. Company’s management and supervisory bodies should
comprise such number of board (executive directors) and
supervisory (non-executive directors) board members that
no individual or small group of individuals can dominate
decision-making on the part of these bodies.?

Yes

The company board is made of 5 members and this number is
considered to be sufficient.

' Provisions of Principles III and IV arc more applicable to those instances when the general sharehoiders® meeting elects fhe
supervisory board, i.c. a body that is essentially formed to ensure oversight of the company’s board and the chief executive officer and
to represent the company's sharcholders, However, in case the company does not form the supervisory board but rather the board, most
of the recommendations set out in Principles 11T and IV become important and applicable to the board as well, Furthermors, it should be
noted that certain recommendations, which are in their essence and nature applicable exclusively to the supervisory board (e.g.
formation of the committees), should not be applied to the board, as tha competence and funetions of these bodies according to the Law
on Companies of the Republie of Lithvania (Qfficial Gazette, 2003, No [23-5574) are different. For instance, item 3.1 of the Cocle
eonceining oversight of the management bodies applies to the extent it concems the oversight of the chief executive officer of the
eompany, but not of the board itself; item 4.1 of the Code concerning recommendations to the management bodies applies to the exient
it relafes to the provision of recommendations to the company’s chief executive officer; item 4.4 of the Code concerning independence
of Lhe collegial body elected by ihe general meeting from the company’s management bodies is applied to the exteni it concerns
independence from the chief executive officer.

% Definitions ‘executive director’ and ‘ron-executive director* are used in cases when a company has only onc collegial body.
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2.6, Non-executive directors or members of the supervisory
board should be appointed for specified terms subject to
individual re-election, at maximum inlervals provided for in
the Lithuanian legislation with a view to ensuring necessary
development of professionsl experience and sufficiently
frequent reconfirmation of their status. A possibility to
remove them should also be stipulated however this
procedure should not be easier than the removal procedure
for an executive director or a member of the management
board.

The supervisory board is not formed.

2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by the general
sharcholders’ meeting may be a person whose current or
past office constitutes no obstacle to conduet independent
and impartial supervision. Where a company should decide
not to set up a supervisory board bu! rather the board, il is
rccommended {hat the chaiman of the board and chief
executive officer of the company should be a different
person. Former company’s chief executive officer should
not be immediately nominated as the chairman of 1he
collegial body elected by the general shazeholders® meeting.
When a company chooses to departure from these
recommendations, it should fumish information on the
mcasures il has laken (o ensure impartiality of the
supervision.

Yes

The chairman of the board is not and has never been the chief
executive offiecr of the company.

Principle III: The order of the formation of a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting

The order of the formation a eollegial body to be elecled by a general shareholders’ mceting should ensure representation of
minority shareholders, aceountability of this body to the sharcholders and objective monitoring of the company's operation and its

management bedies.”

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collegial body to
be elected by a general sharcholders’ meeting (hereinafter in
this Principle referred to as the ‘collegial body') should
ensure objective and fair monitoring of the company’s
management bodies as well as representation of ninority
sharsholders.

Yes

The mechanism of the board formalion ensures that the
minority sharcholders were properly represented in the board.

? Atention should be drawn to the faet thal in the siiuation where the collegial body eleeted by the general shareholders® neeting is the
board, it is natural that being a management body it should ensure oversight not of all management bodies of the company, but only of
the single-person body of management, i.e. the comnpany’s chief exeeutive offiecr. This note shall apply in respect of item 3.1 as well.
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3.2, Names and surnames of the candidates to become
members of a collegial body, information aboul their
education, qualification, professional background, posilions
taken and potentiat conflicts of interest should be disclosed
early enough before the gencral sharcholders’ meeting so
that the shareholders would have sufficient time 10 make an
informed voting decision. All factors affecting the
candidate’s independenee, the sample list of which is set out
in Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosed. The
collegial body should also be informed on any subsequent
changes in the provided information. The collegial body
should, on yearly basis, collect data provided in this item on
its members and disclose this in the company's annual
report,

Yes

The company collects and discloses all information about the
members of the collegial body, their professional background,
qualification, conflicts of interests in the periodie reports of the
company that are published,

3.3, Should & person be nominated for members of a
collegial body, such nomination should be followed by the
diselosure of informalion on candidate’s partloular
competences relevant to histher serviee on the collegial
body. In order sharcholders and investors are able to
ascerlain whelher member's competenee is further relevant,
the collegial body should, in ils ennual report, diselose the
information on its composilion and particular competences
of individual members which are relevant to their service on
the collegial body.

Yes

3.4 In order to 1naintain a proper balanee in terms of the
eurrent qualifications possessed by its members, the desired
composition of the collegial body shall be determined with
regard to the company’s structure and aclivities, and have
this periodically evaluated The collegial body should
ensure that il is composed of members who, as a whole,
have the required diversity of knowledge, judgment and
experience to complete their tasks properly. The meinbers of
the audit committee, colleetively, should have a recent
knowledge and relevant cxperience in the fields of finance,
accounting and/or audit for the steck exchange listed
companies. At icast one of lhe members of the remuneration
commntittee should have knowledge of and experience in the
field of remuneration policy.

Yes

The board is fonned considering the eompany's structure and
aclivities, the experience of its members, diversity of
knowledge related to the eompany aetivities allow doing the
work properly.

3.5. All new members of the collegial body shounld be
offered a failored program focused on introducing a member
with his/her dulies, corporale organization and activities.
The collegial body should conduct an annual revicw to
identify fields where its members need to updale their skills
and knowledge.

Yes

The new members are introduced with the company and the
regulations of thc company board. The members of the board
constantly parficipate at various refresher courses and
seminars where they collect information abouwi the essential
changes in the legal acts repulaling the company’s activities.
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3.6. In order to ensure that all material conflicts of interest
relaled with a member of the collegial body are resolved
properly, the collegial body should comprise a sufficient!
number of independent’ members.

Historically the company exhibits the silualion that the
sufficiency of the independent membcrs has not heen
considered, As the trading of the company shares takes place
actively and the minority shareholders take an active part in
the management of the company, the company will seek
implementatian of this principle.

3.7. A member of the collegial body should be considered to
be independent only if he is free of any business, family or
other relationship with the company, ils controlling
sharcholder or the management of either, that creates a
conflict of inlerest such as to impair his judgment. Since all
cases when member of the collegial body is likely to
become dependant are impossible to list, moreover,
relalionships and circumstances associated with the
delermination of independence may vary amongsl
companies and lhe best practices of solving this problem are
yet to evolve in the course of time, assessment of
independence of a member of the collegial body should be
based on the contents of the relationship and cireumstances
rather than their form. The key eriteria for identifying
whether a member of the collegial body can be considered
to be iudependent are the following:

1) He/she is nol an execulive director or member of the
board (if a collegial body efecied by the geneml
sharcholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) of
the company or any associated company and has
not been such during the last five years;

2) He/she is not an employee of the company or some
any company and has not been such during the
last 1bree ycars, excepi for cases when a member
of the collegial body does not belong to the senior
management and was elected to the collegial body
as a representative of the employees;

3) He/she is not receiving or has been nol receiving
significant additional remuneration from 1ihe
company or associated company other than
remuneration for the office in the collegial body.
Such  additional  remuneration  includes
participation in share options or some other
performanec based pay systems; it does nol
include compensation payments for the previous
office in the company (provided that such
payment is no way related with later position) as
per pension plans (inclusive of deferred
compensations);

Four members of the Board are the members of the Board of
the largest shareholder — the rclated company. One member of
the Board works for the company that has important business
relations — provided internal audit and consultancy services.

“ The Code does not provide for a conerete number of independent members to comprise a collegial body. Many codes in foreign
counlries fix a concrete number of independent members {e.g. at least 1/3 or 1/2 of the members of the collegial body) to comprise the
collegial body. However, having regard to the novelty of the institution of independent members in Lithuania and potential problems in
finding and electing a concrete number of independent members, the Code provides for a more flexible wording and allows the
companies themselves to decide what number of independent members is sufficient. Of course, a larger number of independent
members in a collegial body 1s encouraged and will constitute an example of more suilable corporate governance.

* It is notable that in some companies all members of the collegial body may, due to & very small number of minority sharchofders, be
elected by the voles of the majority sharcholder or a few major sharcholders. But even a member of the collegial body elected by the
majority sharcholders may be considered independent if he/she meets the independence criteria set out in the Code,
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4) He/she is not a controlling shareholder or
representative of sueh shareholder {(control as
defined in the Couneil Directive 83/34%EEC
Artiele 1 Part 1);

5) He/she does not have and did not have any material
business relations with the company or associated
company within the past year directly or as a
partner, shareholder, director or superior
employee of the subject having sueh relationship.
A subject is considered 10 have business refations
when it is a major supplier or service provider
(ivelusive of finaneial, legal, counseling and
consulting serviees), major elient or organization
reeciving significant payments from the company
or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, duriug the last three
years, partner or employes of the eurrent or
former external audil company of the company or
assogiated company;

7y He/she is not an executive director or member of the
board in some other company where exceutive
director of the company or member of the board
(if a collegial body eleeted by the general
sharcholders’ mesting is the supervisory board) is
non-executive director or member of ihe
supervisory board, he/she may not also have any
olher material relationships with exeeutive
directors of the company that arise from their
participation in activities of other eompanies or
bodies;

8) Hesshe has not been in the position of a member of
the collegial body fo1 over than 12 years;

9) He/she is not a close relative to an execulive director
or member of the board (if a “collegial body
elected by the general shareholders® meeting is the
supervisory board) or to any person listed in
above ilems 1 1o 8. Close relative is eonsidered to
be a spouse (common-law spouse), children and
parents,

3.8. The determination of what constitutes independenee is
fundamentally an issue for the collegial body itself lo
determine. The eollegial body mey decide that, despite a
particular member meets all the criteria of independence
laid down in this Code, he eannot be considered
independent due to special personal or company-related
circumstances.
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3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the collegial
body has come 1o in ils determination of whether a
particnlar member of the body should be considered to be
independent should be disclosed. When a person is
nominated to become a member of the collegial body, the
company should disclose whether it considers the person to
be independent. When a particular member of the collegial
body does not meet one or more criteria of independence set
out in this Code, the company should dis¢lose itz reasons for
nevertheless considering the member 1o be independent. In
addilion, thc company should annually disclose which
members of the collegial body i1 considers to be
independent.

No

3.10, When one or more crileria of independence sel out in
this Code has not been mel throughout the year, the
company should disclose its reasons for considering a
particular member of the collegial body to be independent.
To ensure accuracy of the information disclosed in relation
with the independence of the members of the collegial body,
the company should require independcnt members to have
their independence periodically re-confirmed,

3.11. In order to remunerale members of a collegial body for
their work and parlicipalion in the meetings of the collegial
body, they may bc recmuneraled from the company's funds.®.
The peneral shareholders’ mceting should approve the
amouni of such remuneration.

The company has remunerated the members of the board for
their work for the year 2009 from the company's funds and
plans to do this in future. The general meeting of the
shareholders approves the following amount for remuneration.

Prineiple IV: The duties and liabilities of a coflegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting

The corporate governance frameworl should ensure proper and effective functioning of the eollegial body elecied by the general
shareholders’ meeting, and the powers granted to the collegial hody should ensure effective monitoring’ of (he company’s
management bodies and proteetion of interests of all the company*s shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elecled by the general shareholders’
meeting (hercinafter in this Prineiple referred to as the
“collegial body’) should ensure integrity and transparency of
the comnpany’s financial statements and the conlrol system.
The collegial body should issue recommendations to the
company’s management bodies and monitor and control the
¢ompany’s management performence.®

Yes

Once a quarter the board hear gut the report of 1he chief
executive officer and the finance director of the company,
analyzes lheir aelivity and evaluates its effectiveness and
provides recommendations, if required. The board analyzes,
evaluates the draft of annual finaneial accountability of the
company and draft profit (loss) allocation, and presents them
to the general meeting of the shareholders.

%t is notable that currently it is not yel completely clear, in what form members of the supervisory board or the board may be
remunerated for their work in these bodies. The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Qfficial Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574)
provides that members of the supervisory board or the board mey be remunerated for their work in the supervisory board or the board
by payment of annual bonuses (tantiems) in the manner prescribed by Article 59 of this Law, i.e. from the company's profit. The
current wording, contrary to the wording effective before 1 January 2004, eliminaies the exclusive requirement that annual bonuses
(tantiems) should be the oaly form of the company’s compensation to members of the supervisory board or the board. So it seems that
the Law tontains no prohibilion to remunerate members of the supervisory board or the board for their work in other forms, besides
bonuses, although this possibility is not expressly stated either.

7 See Footnote 3.

¥ See Footnote 3. In the event the collegial body elecied by the general shareholders® meeting is the board, it should provide
recommendations 1o the company’s single-person body of management, i.c. the eompany's chief executive officer.
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4.2. Members of the collegial body should act in good faith, Yes
wilh care and responsibility for the benefit and in the
interests of the compeny end its sharcholders with due
regard to the interests of employees and public welfare.
Independent members of the cotlegial body should (a) under
all circumstances maintain independence of their analysis,
decisiou-making and actions (b) do not seek and accept any
unjustified privileges that might compromise their
independence, and (c) clearly express their objections
should a member consider that deeision of the collegial
body is against the interests of the company. Should a
collegial body have passcd deeisions independent member
has serious doubts about, the member should make adequate
conclusions. Should an independent member resign from his
office, he should explain the reasons in a letter addressed to
the collegial body or audit committee and, if necessary,
respeclive company-not-periaining body (institution).

43, Bach member should devole sufficient time and Yes The members of the company board participated at the
attention to perform his dulies as a member of the collegial mectings of the board and each member gave enough time to
body. Each member of the collegial body should limit other perform the duties of a board member.

professional obligations of his (in particnlar any
directorships held in other companies) in such a manner
they do not interfere with proper perforinance of duties of a
member of {he collegial body. In the event a 1nember of the
collegial body should be present in less than a half® of the
meetings of the collegial body thronghout the financial year
of the company, shareholders of the company should be
notified.

4.4, Where deeisions of a collegial body may have a | Yes
different effeel on 1he conpany’s shareholders, the collegial
body should treat all shareholders impartially and fairly. It
should ensure that shareholders are properly informed on
the company’s affairs, sirafegies, risk mansgement and
resolution of conflicts of interesl. The compeany should have
a clearly established role of members of the collegial body
when communieating with and committing to sharcholders.

? It is notable that eoinpanies can make this requirement more stringent and provide that shareholders should be informed about failure
to partieipate at the meetings of the collegial body if, for instance, a member of the collegial body participated at less than 2/3 or 3/4 of
the meetings. Such measures, whieh ensure active participation in the meetings of the collegial body, are encouraged and will constitule
an exampie of more suitable corporate governance,
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45 It is recommended tha! iransactions (except Yes
insignificant ones due 1o their low value or eoneluded when
carrying cut routine operations in ihe company under usual
conditions), concluded between the company and its
shareholders, members of the Superviscry of managing
bodies or other natural or legal persons thet exert or may
exert influence on the company's management should be
subject to approval of the colleginl body. The decision
conceming approval of sueh transaetions should be deemed
adopted only provided the majority of the independent
members of the collegial body voted for such a deeision.

4.6. The collegial body should be independent in passing Yes
decisions that are significant for the company’s operations
and strategy. Taken separately, the collegial body should be
independent of the compeny's menegement bodies'.
Members of the collegial body should act and pass decisions
without an outside influence from the persons who have
elecied iL Cownpanies should ensure that the collegial body
and its committees are provided with sufficient
adminisiralive and financial resources to discharge their
duties, including the right to obtain, in particular fiom
employees of the company, all the neeessary informalion or
to seek independent legal, accounting or any other advice on
issues pertaining to the competence of the collegial body
and its commitiees. When using the services of a consultant
with a view to obfaining information on inarket standards
for remuneration systeins, the remuneralion committee
should ensure Lhat the consultant concerned does not et the
same (ime advice the human resources depariment,
executive directors or collcgial management organs of the
company concerned.

'° In the event Lhe collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeling is the board, the recommendation concerning its
independence from the company's management bodies applies to the extent it relates to the independence from the company’s chicf
executive officer.
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4.7. Activities of the collegial body should be organized in o
menner thal independent members of the collegial body
could have major influence in relevant areas where chances
of occurrence of conflicts of interest are very high. Such
areas to be eonsidered as highly relevant are issues of
nomination of company's directors, determination of
directors’ remuneration and control and assessment of
company’s audit. Therefore when the mentioned issues are
afiributable to the competence of the collegial body, it is
recommended that the collegial body should establish
nomination, remuneration, and audit commiﬂ-ees".
Companies should ensure that the funetions attributable to
the nomination, remuncration, and audit commitiees are
carried out. However they may decide to merge these
funetions and set up less than three eommittees. In sueh ease
a company should explain in defail reasons behind the
selection of alternative approaeh and how the selected
approach complies with the objectives set forth for ihe three
different committees. Should the collegial body of the
company comprise small number of members, the functions
assigned to the three committees may be performed by the
collegial body itself, provided thal it meets composition
requiremenis advoeated for the eommittees and (hal
adequate iuformelion is provided in this respect. In such
case provisions of this Code relaling to the committees of
the collegial body (in particular with respect to their role,
operation, and transparency) should apply, where rclevant,
to the collegisl body as s whole.

No

The collegial body of the company's managemen is a board
performing the functions of the nomination, remuneration
commitiees. The board of the company selecis the candidate
for the chief executive offieer - managing director of the
company and the eandidates for the other managers of the
eompany. It constantly evaluates their experience, professional
capabilities and implementation of the eompany's strategic
goals, hears out the reports. The board of the company selects
the candidate for the external audit and provides proposals to
the general shareholders’ meeting for approval.

On 15 May 2009 the audit committee was eleeted during the
reconvened Annual General Mezting of the Shareholders

4.8. The key objective of the commmitiees is to inerease
effieiency of Ihe activities of (he collegial body by ensuring
that decisions are based on due consideration, and to help
organize its work with a view to ensuring that the deeisions
it takes are free of material conflicts of inferest. Committees
should exercise independeut judgement and integrity when
exereising its funelions as well as present the collegial body
with recommendations conecinjng the decisions of the
collegial body. Nevertheless the final decision shall be
adopted by the collegial hody. The racommendalion on
ercation of committces is not intended, in prineiple, to
constriet the coinpetence of the collegial body or to remove
lhe matiers considered from the purview of the collegial
body itself, which remains fully responsible for the
decisions taken in its field of competence.

Yes

4.9. Committees established by the collegial body should
normally be composed of at leasi three members. In
comparnies with small number of members of the collegial
body, they could exceptionally be composed of two
members. Majority of the members of each commitiee
should be constituted from independent members of the

Yes

The audit commitiee consists of three members. Onc member
conforms to the requirements for independence. The audit
commiltee is elected for the period of one year.

HThe Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Audit (Official Gazette, 2008, No 82-53233) determines that an Audit Committee shall be
formed in each publie interest entity (including, but not limited to public companies whose segurilies are traded in the regulaled markel

of the Republic of Lithuania and/or any other member state ).
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collegial body. In cases when the company chooses not to
sef up a supervisory board, remuneration and audit
committees should be entirely comprised of non-executive
directors. Chairmanship and membership of the committecs
should be decided with due regard to the need to ensure that
committee meinbership is refreshed and that undus reliance
is not placed on particular individuats. Chairmanship and
membership of the committees should be decided with due
regand to the need to ensure that committee membership is
refreshed and that undug reliance is not placed on particular
individuals.

4.10. Authority of each of the committees should be
determined by the collegial body. Committees should
perforin their duties in line with authority delegated to thein
and inform the eolleginl body on their activities and
performance on regular basis. Authority of every commiftee
slipulating the role and rights and duties of the committee
should be made public at least once a year (as part ol the
information disclosed by the company annually on its
eorporate governance structures and practices). Companies
shonld also meke public annually a statemenl by existing
committecs on their composition, nuinber of meetings and
attendance over the year, and their main activities. Audit
commitlee shonld confirm that it is satisfied with the
independence of the audit process and deseribe briefly the
actions i1 has taken to reach this conelusion.

Yes

The rules of the audit committee were approved and published
on the wehsite of the company

4.11. In order to ensnre independenee and impartiality of the
commiilices, meinbers of the collegial body that are not
menbers of the comunittee should commonly have a right o
participate in the meetings of the committee only if invited
by the committee. A committee may invite or demand
participation in the meeting of particular officers or experts.
Chairman of cach of the eommittees should have a
possibility to maintain direct cominunication with the
shareholders. Events when such are 1o be performed should
be specified in the regulations for committee activities.

Yes

Applicable to the audit commitlee

66




4.12. Nomination Committee.
4.12.1. Key functions of the nominalion committee should
be the following:

« Identify and recommend, for the approval of the collegial
body, candidates to fill board vacancies. The nomination
committec should evaluate the balanee of skills, knowledge
and experience on ihe management body, prepare a
description of the roles and capabilities required to assume a
partieular office, and assess the time commitment expested.
Nomination committee can also consider candidates to
members of the collegial body delepgated by the sharcholders
of the company;

» Assess on regular bagis the structure, size, composition
and performance of the supervisory and management
bodies, and meke recommendations to the collegial body
regarding the means of echieving necessary ehanges;

» Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge and
experience of individual directors and report on this to the
collegial body;

» Properly consider issues related 1o succession planning;

* Review the policy of the managementi bodies for selection
and appointment of senior management.

4.12.2, Nomination committec should consider proposals by
other parties, including management and shareholders.
When dealing with issues related 1o execulive directors o
members of the board (if a collegial body eleeled by the
general sharcholders’ mecting is the supervisory board) and
senior management, chief executive officer of the company
should be consulted by, and entitled to submit proposals 1o
the nomination committee.

Not
applicable

The committee is not formed.

4.13. Remuneration Committee.

4,13.1, Key funetions of the remuneration committec should
b the following:

= Make proposals, for the approval of the collegial body, on
the remuneration policy for members of inanagement bodies
and executive directors. Such policy should address afl
forms of compensation, including the fixed remuneration,
performance-based  remuneration  sechemes,  pension
arrangements, and termination payments. Proposals
considering performance-based remuneration schemes
should be accompanied with recommendations on the
related objectives and evaluation criteria, with a view to
properly aligning the pay of execulive director and members
of the management bodies with the long-term interesis of
the shareholders and the objectives set by the collegial body;
» Make proposals to the collegial body ou the individual
remunemtion for executive directors and member of
managemen{ bodies in order their renunerstions are
consistent with company’s remuneration policy and the
evaluation of the performance of these persons concerned.
In doing so, the committec should be properly inforined on
the total compensation oblained by executive directors and
members of the management bodies from the affiliated
companies;

» Ensure that remuneration of individual executive directors
or members of management body is proportionats 10 the
remuneration of other execntive directors or members of
management body and other staff members of the company;
» Periodically 1eview the remuneration policy for executive
directors or members of menegement body, ineluding the
policy regarding share-based remunecration, and its
implementation;

» Make proposals to the collegial body on suitable forms of

Nol
applicable

The comrnittee is not formed.
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conlracts for executive directors and members of the
management bodies;

= Assist the collegial body in oversesing how the company
complies with appliceble provisions regarding 1he
remnuneration-related inforination disclosure {in particular
the remuneration policy applied and individual
remuneration of direetors);

» Make general recommendations to the exccutive directors
and members of the management bodies on the level and
structure of remuneration for senior management (as defined
by the collegial body) with regard to the respective
infonnation provided by the executive dircetors and
members of the management bodies.

4.13.2. Wilh respect to stock options and other share-based
incentives which may be granted teo directers or other
employecs, the committee should:

» Consider general policy regarding the granting of the
above mentioned schemes, in particular stock options, and
make any related proposals to the collegial body;

» Examine the related information that is given in {he
company's annual report and documents intended for lhe
use during the sharcholders mecting;

*» Make proposals to the collegial bady regarding the choice
between granting options to subscribe shares or granting
options to purchase shares, specifying the reasons for its
choice as well as the consequences that this choice has,

4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributable to the
competence of the remuneration committee, he commitiee
should at least address the chairman of the collegial body
andfor chief executivc officer of the comnpany for their
opinion on the remuneration of other execulive direetors or

members of the management badies.

4.13.4. The remuncration commiltee should report on the
exercise of its functions to the shareholders and be present
at the annual general meeting for this purpose.
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4,14, Audit Committee.

4.14.1. Key functions of the audil committee should be the
following:

= Observe the inlegrity of the financial information provided
by the company, in particular by reviewing the relevance
and consistcncy of the accounting methods used by the
company and its group (including the criteria for the
consolidation of the accounts of companies in the group);

» At least onee a year review the systems of intemnal control
and risk management to ensure that the key risks (inelusive
of the risks in relation with compliance with exisling laws
and regulations) arc properly identified, managed and
reflected in the infermation provided;

» Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit function, ainong
other things, by making recommendations on the selection,
appointment, reappointment and removal of the liead of the
intenal audit department and on the budget of the
department, and by monitoring the responsiveness of the
management to ils findings aud recoumendations. Should
there be ne internal audil authority in the company, the need
for one should be reviewed at least annually;

» Make recommendations to the collegial body related with
selection, appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor (fo be done by the general sharcholders’
meeting) and with the terms and conditions of lis
engagemeni. The comnittee should investigale situations
that lead to a resignation of the audil company or auditor
and make recomunendations on required actions in such
siluations;

* Monilor independence and impartiality of the external
auditor, in paticular by reviewing the audil company’s
comphance with applieable puidance relating to the rotation
of audit partners, the level of fees paid by the company, and
similar issues. In otder to prevent occurrence of material
conflicts of interest, the committee, based on the auditor’s
disclosed inter alia data on alt remunerations paid by the
company to the auditor and nelwork, should at all times
monitor nature and extent of the non-sudit services, Having
regard to the principals and guidelines established in the 16
May 2002 Commission Recommendation 2002/5S0/EC, the
committee should determine and apply a formal policy
esleblishing types of non-audit services lhat arc (&)
excluded, (b) permissible only after review by the
committee, and {c) permissible without referral to the
committee;

* Review effictency of the exicrnal audit process and
respongivencss of management to recommendations made in
the external auditor’s management letter.

4,14.2. All membcers of the committes should be furnished
with complete information on particulars of acconnting,
financial and other opcrations of the company. Company's
management should inform the audit committee of the
methods uscd to account for significant and unusual
transactions where the accounting treatment may be open to
differcni approaches. In such case a special consideration
should be given to company’s operations in offshore centers
and/or activities carried out through speeial purpose vehicles
{organizations) and justification of such operations.

4.14.3. The audt committes should decide whether
participation of the chairman of the collegial body, chief
executive officer of the company, chief financial officer (or
superior employees in ¢harge of finances, treasury and
accounting), or internal and external auwditors in the
meetings of the committee is required (if required, when).

On 15 May 2009 the audit committee was elected during the
reconvened Anaual General Meeling of the Shareholders. The
audit committee consisls of three members, The audit
comrnittec organizes its work following the rules of the audit
committee approved during the mesting of the sharcholders.
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The committes should be entitled, when needed, to meel
with eny relevent person without execulive direclors and
members of the management bodies present.

4.14.4, Internal and external auditors should be secured with
not only effective working relationship with management,
bul also with free access to the collegial body. For this
purpose the audit committee should act as the principal
contact person for the internal and external auditors.

4.14.5. The andit committec should be informed of the
internal auditor’s work program, and should be furnished
with internal audi’s reporls or periedie summaries. The
audit committee should also be informed of the work
program of the external auditor and should be furnished
with reporl disclosing all relationships between the
independent auditor and the company and its group. The
eommittee should be timely furnished inforination on all
issures arising from the audit.

4,14.5. The audil comnittee should exainine whether the
company is following applicable provisions regarding the
possibility for employees to report alleged significant
iregularities in the company, by way of complaints or
through anonyinous subinissions (normally to &n
independent member of 1he collegial body), and should
ensure thal there is a procedure esteblished for proportionate
and independent investigation of these issues and for
appropriate follow-up action.

4.14.7. The audit eommittec should reporl on its aerivities to
the collegial body at least onee in every six months, at the
time the yearly and half-yearly slatements are approved.

4.15, Every year the eollegial body should conduct the | No
assessment of its activities. The assessinent should include
cvaluation of collegial body's structure, work orpanization
and ability to ect as a group, evaluation of each of the
collegial body inemnber’s and committee’s compelence and
work efficiency and assessment whether the collegiat body
has achieved its objectives. The collegial body should, at
least once a year, make public (as part of the informalion Lhe
comnpany annually discloses on its management structures
and practices) respective information ou ils internal
organization and working procedures, and specify whal
malerial ehanges were made as a result of the assessment of
the collegial body of its own activities,

Priuciple V: The working procedure of the eompany’s collegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and inanagement bodies established in the company should ensure efficient operation of these

bodies and decision-making and encourage active co-operation between the company’s bodies.
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5.1. The company’s supervisory and management bodies
(hereinafter in this Principle ihe concept ‘collegial bodies’
covers both the collegial bodies of supervision and the
collegial bodies of management) should be chaired by
chairpersons of these bodies. The chairperson of a collegial
body is responsible for proper convocation of the collegial
body meetings. The chairperson should ensure that
informalion about the ineeting being convened and its
agenda are communicated to all members of the body. The
chairperson of a collegial body should ensure appropriate
condneling of the meelings of the collegial hody. The
ehairperson should ensure order and working atmosphere
during the meeting,

Yes

5.2. 1t is recommended thal meelings of the company’s
collegial bodies should be earried out according to the
sehedule epproved in advanee at certain intervals of time,
Each company is free to decide how often to convene
meetings of 1he collegial bodies, but it is recommended that
these meetings should be conveued at such intervals, whieh
would guarantee an inferrupled resolulion of the essential
corporate governance issues. Meetings of the company’s
supervisory hoard should be convened at least once in a
quarter, and the company’s board should meet at least once
amonth'?,

Yes

The meeling of the company’s eollegial body — the board takes
place based on the periodicity approved in advance and in
accordance with 1he planned agenda.

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notifted about
thc meeting being eonvened in advance in order to allow
sufficient time for proper preparalion for the issues on the
agenda of the meceting and to ensure fruitful discussion and
adoptron of appropriate decisions. Alongside with the notice
about the meeting being convened, all the documents
relevant to the issues on the agenda of the meeting should be
submitied to the inembers of the collegial body. The agenda
of the meeting should nol be changed or supplemented
during the meeting, uniess all members of the collegial body
are present or eertain issues of great importance to the
company require immediate resolution.

Yes

Each member of the board ean introduce himself/lierself to the
documents of the meeting, reports, and drafl decisions three
days prior to the meeting day

54. In order to co-ordinatc operation of the company’s
collegial bodies and ensure effective decision-making
process, chairpersons of the company’s collegial bodies of
supervision and menagement should elosely co-operate by
co-coordinating dates of thc meetings, their agendas and
resolving other issues of corporate governance. Members of
the company’s board should be free to attend ineetings of
the company's supervisory bowrd, especially where issues
concerning removul of Ihe board members, their liability or
remunetation are diseussed.

Not
applieable

The supervisory board is not formed.

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholders and shareholder rights

12 The frequency of meetings of the collegial body provided for in the recommendation must be epplied in Ihose cases when both
additional collegial bodies are formed at the company, the board and the supervisory board. In the event only ene addilional collegial
body is formed in the company, the frequeney of its meetings may be as established for the supervisory board, ie. at least once in a

quarter.
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The corporate governance framework should ensure (he equitable treatment of all shareholders, including minority and foreign
sharehelders. The corporate governance framework should protect the righis of the shareholders.

6.1. It is recomnmended that the company's capitat should Yes The company's capital is comprised from ordinary registered
consist only of the shares that grant the same rights to shares granting equal personal and non-property rights to their
voling, ownership, dividend and other rights fo all their OWnNers.

holders.

6.2. It is recommended that inveslors should have access to Yes

the information concerning the rights attached to the shares

of the new issue or those issued earlier in advance, ie.

before they purchese shares.

6.3. Transactions that are important to the company and its No The Anrticles of Association do not essign the decision making
shareholders, such s transfer, investment, and pledge of the to the general shareholders' meeting if they are relaled to the
company’s assels or any other type of encumbrance should long-term assets the balance sheet vatue of whieh is higher

be subjeel to approval of the general sharcholders’ than 1/2Q of the company’s authorized capital, investment
meeting.'> All shareholders should be furnished with equal transfer, rent, morigage, purchese, ete.

opportunity to familierize with and participate in the

decision-making process when significant corporate issues,

including approval of transactions referred to above, arc

discussed.

6.4, Procedures of convening and conducting a general Yes The place, date and time of the general shareholders’ meeting
sharcholders’ meeting should ensure equal opportunilies for are chosen in a manner ensuring the possibilities to all

the shareholders to effeclively parlieipate at the meetings sharcholders 10 attend the shareholders’ meeting aclivcly..'T'he
and should not prejudice the rights and interests of the sharcholders are iuformed about the convening of the general
sharcholders. The venue, date, and time of the shareholders’ sharcholders’ meeting in public and no later than 21 days prior
meeting should not hinder wide attendance of the 1o the meeting the shareholders er¢ allowed to familiarize
shereholders. : hemselves to the draft resolutions.

") The Law on Companies of the Republie of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574) no longer assigns resolulions concerning
the invesiment, transfer, lease, mortgage or acquisition of the long-terms assets accounting for more than 1/2Q0 of the company's
authorised capital 1o the competence of the general shereholders’ meeting. However, transactions that are important and material for the
cornpany’s activity should be considered and approved by the general sharcholders’ meeting. The Law on Companies contains no
prohibition to this effect cither. Yel, in order not to eneumber the company’s activity and escepe en unreasonably frequent
consideration of transactions at the meetings, companies are free to establish their own criteria of material transactions, which are
subjeet to the approval of the meeting. While establishing these ¢riteria of material lransactions, cornpanies may follow the eriteria set
out in ilems 3, 4, 5 and & of paragraph 4 of Arlicle 34 of the Law on Companies or derogate from them in view of the specific nature of
their operation and their atlempt 1o ensure uninterrupled, efficient functioning of the company.
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6.5, If is possible, in order to ensure shareholders living
abroad the right to access to ithe informalion, it is
recommended ihat documents on the course of the peneral
shareholders’ meeting should be placed on the publicly
accessible website of the eompany not only in Lithuanian
language, but in English and /or other foreign languages in
advanee. It i3 recommended that the minutes of the general
shareholders’ meeting after signing them and/or adopted
resolutions should be also placed on the publicly accessible
website of the company. Seeking 10 ensure the right of
foreigners to familiarize with the information, whenever
feasible, documents rcferred to in ihis recommendation
should be published in Lithuanian, English and/er other
foreign lanpuapes. Doeuments rcferred to in this
recommendation may be published on the publiely
accessible website of the company (o the extent that
publishing of these doeumeuts is not detrimentat to the
company or the company’s eommereial secrets are not
revealed.

Yes

6.6, Shareholders should be furnished with the opportunity
to vote in the general shareholders’ mecting in person and in
absentia. Shareholders should not be prevented from voling
in writing iu advance by eompleting the geueral voting
ballet,

Yes

Each shareholder can partieipate in the meeting in person or
delegating the partieipation to some other person,

6.7. With a view to inereasing the shareholders'
opporlunities to participate effectively al shareholders®
meetings, the eompanies are recommended to expaud use of
modern technologies by allowing the shareholders to
participate and vote in general mcstings via eleetronic
means of communication. In sueh eanses seeurity of
transmitted Information and e possibilily to identify the
identity of the parlicipating and voling person should be
guaranteed. Morcover, companies could furnish its
shareholders, especially shareholders living abroad, with the
opportunity to watch shareholder meetings by means of
modern technologies,

Principle VII: The aveidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governanee framework should encourage members of the corporale bodies to avoid confliets of inlerest and assure
transparent and effective mechanism of disclosure of conflicts of inlerest regarding members of the corporate bodies.

7.1. Any member of the company's supervisory and
management body should aveid a situation, m whieh his/her
personal interests are in conflicl or may be in conflict with
the company’s interests. In ease such a sitvation did occur, a
member of the company’s supervisory and management
body should, within reasonable time, inform other meinbers
of the same collegial body or the company’s bedy that has
elected him/her, or to the company’s sharcholders about a
situation of a conflict of interest, indieale the nature of the
conflict and value, where possible.

Yes
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7.2. Any wember of the company's supervisory and
management body may not mix the company's assets, e
use of which has not been mutually agreed upon, with
hisfher personal assets or use them or the informalion which
he/she leams by virtue of his/her position as a member of a
corporate body for hig/her personal benefit or for the benefit
of any third person without a prier agreement of the general
shareholders® meeting or any other corporale hody
authorized by the meeting,

Yes

7.3. Any wmember of the company’s supervisory and
management body may conclude a iransaction with the
company, a member of a corporate body of which he/she is.
Such a transaction (exeept insignificant ones due to their
low value or concluded when camrying oul routine
operations in the company under usual conditions) must be
immediately reported in writing or orally, by recording this
in the minutes of the meetiug, to other members of the same
cosporate body or to the corporate body that has elecled
hiwn/her or to the company’s shareholders. Transactions
specified in this recommendation are also subject to
recommendation 4.5.

Yes

74. Any member of the company's supervisory and
wanagement body should abstain from voting when
decisions concerning transactions or olher issues of personal
or business interest are voted on.

Yes

Principle VIII: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy nnd procedure for approval, revision and disclosure ol direciors’ remuneration esinblished in the company
should prevent potential conflicts of interest and abuse in determining remuneration of directors, in additien it should ensure
publicity and transparency both of company’s remuneration policy and reniuneraiion of directors.

B.1. A company should make a public statement of the
company’s policy  (hereinafter the
remuneration slatement) which should be clear and easily
vnderstandable. This remuneration statement should be
published as a part of the company's ennval stetement as
well as posted on the company’s website.

remuneration

No

The company observes the motivation system of the directors
approved by the Board.

8.2 Remuneration statement should mainly focus on
directors® remuneration policy for the following year and, if
appropriate, the subsequent years. The statcrnent should
contain a summary of the implementation of the
remuneralion policy in the previous financial year. Speeial
attention should be pgiven to any significant changes in
company's retnuneratlon policy as compared to the previous
financial year,

Recommendations provided in itern 8.1 are not followed,
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8.3. Remuneration statement should leasiwise include the
following information:

» Explanation of the relative imporiance of the variable and
non-variablc components of directors’ rcmuneration;

« Sufficient information on performance criteria that entitles
direetors to share options, shares or variable components of
remuneration;

* An explanation how the choice of performance criteria
contributes to the long-term interesis of the company;

» An explanation of the methods, applied in order 1o
determine whether petformance eriteria have been fulfilled;
» Sufficient information on deferment periods with regard to
variable components of remuneration;

= Sufficient information on the linkage between the
remuneration and performance;

« The main paremeters and ralionale for any sunual bonus
scheme and any othcr nou-cash benefits;

« Sufficient information on the policy regarding termination
payments;

= Suffieient information with regard to vesling periods for
share-based remuneralion, as referred to in point 8.13 of this
Code;

» Sufficient information on the policy regarding rctention of
shares after vesting, as referred to in point 8.15 of this Code;
» Sufficient informalion on the composition of peer groups
of coinpanies the remuneration policy of which has been
examined in relation to the establishment of 1he
remnneration poliey of the company concerned,;

= A deseription of the main eharacteristies of supplemeniary
pension or early retirement schemes for directors;

« Remuneration slateinent should not include commnercially
sensitive information.

8.4, Remunecation statement should also suminarize and
explain company’s poliey regarding the terms of the
coulracts execnted with exeeutive directors and members of
the management bodies. It should include, inter alia,
information on the duration of contracts with exeeulive
directors and members of the management bodies, the
applicable notice periods and details of provisions for
termination payments linked to early termination under
eontracts for exeentive direetors and members of the
management bodies.

Recommendations provided in item 8.1 are not followed,
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8.5. Remuneration statement should also contain detailed
information on the entire amount of remuneration, inclusive
of other benefils, that was paid to individual directors over
the relevent financial year. This docuinent should list at
least the information set out in items 8.5.1 to 8.5.4 for each
person who has served as a director of the company at any
timc during the relevant finaneial year.

8.5.1, The following remuneraticn and/or emeluinents-
related infornation should be disclosed:

» The total amount of remuneration paid or due to the
director for services perfonned during the relevant finaneial
year, inclusive of, where relevant, attendanee fees fixed by
the annual general shareholders meeting;

« The remuneration and advantages received from any
undertaking belonging to the same group;

« The remuneration paid in the form of profit sharing and/or
bonus payments and the reasons why such bonus payinents
and/or profit sharing were granied;

« If permissible by the law, any significant additional
remuneration paid to directors for special services outside
the scope of the usual functions of a direcior;

» Compensation receivable or paid 1o each former executive
director or member of the management body as a result of
his resignation from the office during the previous finaneial
year,

» Total estimated value of non-cash benefits considered as
remnuneration, other than he iteins covered in the above
points.

8.5.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acquire share
options and/or all other share-incentive schiemes, the
following inforination should be disclosed:

« The nuinber of share options offered or shares granted by
the eompany during the relevant finaneial year and their
conditions of application;

» The number of shares options exercised during the relevant
fivancial year and, for each of (hem, 1he number of shares
involved and the exergise price or the value of the intercst in
the share inceative scheme at the end of the financial year;
*» The number of share options unexercised at the end of the
financial year; their exercise price, thc exercise date and ihe
main conditions for the exercise of the rights;

» All chaniges in the terms and conditions of existing share
options occurring during the financial year,

8.5.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-
related information should be disclosed:

= When the pension scheme is a detined-benefit scheme,
changes in the directors’ accrued benefits under that scheme
during the relevant financial year;

» When the pension scheme is defined-contribution scheme,
detailed inforination on contributions paid or payable by the
company in respect of that director during the relevant
financial year.

8.5.4. The statement should also state amounts that the
company or any subsidiary coinpany or entity included in
the consolidated annual financial report of the company has
paid to each person who has served as a director in the
comparty al any time during the relevant fimancial year in
the form of loans, advance payments or guarantees,
including the amount outstanding and the inlerest rate.

No

Recommendations provided in item 8.1 are not followed.
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8.6. Where the remuneration policy includes variable
components of remuneration, companies should set limits
on the variable component(s). The non-variable componeni
of remuneration should be sufficien! to allow thc company
to withhold varinble components of remuneration when
performance criteria are not met.

Yes

The motivation system of the directors defining evaluation
criteria of performance results has been approved in the
company since 9 Mareh 2007.

8.7. Award of variable components of remuncration should
be subject to predetermined and messurable performance
criteria.

Yes

The motivation sysiem of the directors defining evaluation
erileria of performance results has been approved in the
company sinee 9 March 2007,

8.8. Where a variablc component of remunerstion is
awarded, a major part of the variable component should be
deferred for a minimum period of time. The parl of the
variable eomponenl subject to defermeni should be
determined in relation to the relative weight of the veriable
companent compared 1o the non-variable componenl of
remuneration.

Yes

The motivation systcm of the directors defining evalnation
criteria of performance results has been approved in the
company since 9 Mareh 2007,

89. Contractual arrangements with executive or managing
directors should include provisions that permit the eompany
to reelaim variable components of remuneration that were
awarded on the basis of data whieh subsequently proved to
be manifestly missiated.

8.10. Terminalion payments should uol excced a fixed
amount or fixcd number of years of annual remuneration,
which should, in general, not be higher than two years of the
non-variable component of remuneration or the equivalent
thereof.

No

Redundaney pay are allowed following the law of the
Republie of Lithuania

B.11. Terminalion payments should nol be paid if the
termination is due to inadequate performance.

No

Redundancy pay are allowed foilowing the law of the
Republic of Lithuania

8.12. The information on preparalory and decision-making
processes, during which a policy of remuneration of
direclors is being established, should also be disclosed.
Information should include data, if applicable, on authorities
and composition of the remuneration committee, names and
sumnaines of exlernal consultants whose services have been
used in determination of the remuneration policy as well as
ihe role of shareholders’ annual general meeling.

Yes

8.13. Shares should not vest for at least three years after
their award.

Not
appliceble

8.14. Share oplions or any other right to aequire sheres or to
be remunerated on the basis of share price movements
should not be exercisable for at least three years afler their
award. Vesting of shares end the right to exercise share
options or any other right to acquire shares or to be
remunereied on the basis of share price movements, should
be subjccl fo predetermined and measurable parformanee
crileria

Not
applicable
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8.15. After vesling, directors should retain a numher of
shares, until the end of their mandaie, subject to the need to
finance any costs related to acquisition of the shares. The
number of shares to be retained should be fixed, for
example, twice the value of total annual remuneration {the
non-variable plus the variable components).

Not
applicable

8.16. Remunerabon of non-executive or supervisory
directors should not include share options,

Not
applicable

8.17. Shareholders, in particular instihrtional shareholders,
should be encouraged to attend peneral meetings where
appropriale and make cousidered use of their votes
| regarding ditectors’ remuneration,

Not
applicable

8.18. Without prejudice to the role and organizalion of the
relevant bodies responsible for setting directors’
remunerations, the remuneration policy or any other
significant change in remuneration policy should be
included into the agenda of 1he shareholders® annual general
meeling. Remuneration statement should be put for voting
in shareholders’ annual peneral meeting. The vole may he
either mandatory or advisory.

Not
applicable

8.19. Sechemes anticipating remunerstion of diectors in
shares, share optious or any other right lo purchase shares or
be remunerated on the basis of share price movements
should be subject to the prior approval of shareholders’
annual general meeting by way of a resolution prior to their
adoption. The approval of scheme should be related with the
scheme itself and not to the prant of such share-based
benefits under that scheme to individual directors. All
significant changes in scheme provisions should also be
subjeet to sharehalders’ approval prior to their adaption; the
approval decision should be made in shareholders® annual
general meeting. In such casc shareholders should be
natified on all terins of suggested changes and get an
explanation on the impact of the suggesled changes.

8.20. The following issues should be subject to approval by
the shareholders’ annual general meeting:

* Grant of share-based schemes, including share options, to
directors;

+ Determnination of maximum number of shares and main
conditions of share granting;

» The term within which options can be exercised;

« The condilions for any subsequent change in the exercisc
of the options, if permisgible by law,;

» All other long-term incentive schemes for which direclors
are eligible and which are not available to other employees
of thc company under similar terms. Annuel general
meeting should also set the deadline within which the body
responsible for remuneration of directors may award
compensations listed in this artiele 1o individual direclors.

Not
applicable

Not
applicable
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8.21. Should national law or company's Arficles of
Association allow, any discounted option arrangement uuder
which any rights are granted to subscribe Lo shares at a price
lower than the market value of the share prevailing on the
day of the price determination, or the average of the market
values over a number of days preceding the date when the
exereise price is determined, should afso be subject to the
shareholders® approval.

8.22. Provisions of Articles 8.[9 and 8.20 should not be
applicable to sehemes allowing for parlicipation under
similar conditions to company's cmployces or employees of
any subsidiary company whose employees are eligible to
participate in the secheme and which has been approved in
the shareholders® annual general meeting,

823, Prior to the annval genernl meeting that is inlended to
congider deeision stipulated in Arlicle 8.19, the shareholders
must be provided an opportunity fo familiarize with drafi
resolution and project-related notice (the documents should
be posted on the company's website). The notice shonld
contain the full text of the share-based remuneration
schemes or a description of thetr kcy terms, as well as full
names of the partieipants in the sehemes. Notice should also
specify the relationship of the schemcs and the overall
remuneration policy of the directors. Draft resolution must
have a clear reference to the scheme itself or to the suminary
of its key terms. Shareholders must also be presented with
information on how the eompany intends to provide for the
shares required to meet its obligations under incentive
scheines. It should be clearly stated whether the company
intends 1o buy shares in the markel, hold the shares in
reserve or issue new ones. There should also be a suminary
on scheme-related expenses the company will suffer due to
the enlicipated application of the scheme. All information
given in this article must be posted on the compeny's
website.

Not
applicable

Nat
applicable

Not
applicable

Principle IX: The rolc of stakeholders in corporate governance

The corporate governance frnmework should recognize the rights ol stnkeholders as established by law and encourage active co-

operation between companies and siakeholders in creating the comnpany vulue, jobs nnd financial sustainshilicy. For the purposes of

this Principle, the concept “stakeholders” includes investors, employees, ereditors, suppliers, elients, local community and other

persons having certain interest in the eompany concerned.

9.1. The eorporate governance framework should assure that
the rights of stakeholders thet ere protected by law are
respected,

Yes
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9.2. The corporate govermnance framework should create
conditions for the stakeholders to participate in corporate
governance in the manner prescribed by law. Examples of
mechanisms of stakeholder partieipation in corporale
govemance inelude: employee parlicipation in adoplion of
eertain key decisions for the company; consulting the
employees on corporate governance and other important
issues; employee participation in the cornpany’s share
capital; ereditor involvement in govemnance in the context of
the company's insolvency, eic.

9.3, Where stakeholders participate in the corporate
govomance process, they should have aecess to relevant
information.

No

Principle X: Information disclosure and fransparcncy

The corporate governance [ramework should ensure that timely and accurale disclosure is made on all material information

regarding the company, including the financial situation, performance and governance of the company.
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10.1. The company should disclose informalion on:

» The financial and operating results of the company;

« Company objectives;

» Persons holding by the right of ownership or in control of
a block of shares in the company;

» Members of the company’s supervisory and management
bodies, chief executive officer of the company and their
remuneralion;

» Material foreseeable risk factors;

» Transactions between the company and connected persons,
as well as lransactions concluded outside the course of the
company’s regular operations;

* Material issues regarding employees &and other
stakeholders;

= Governance structures and strategy.

This list should be deemed as a minimum recommendation,
while the companies arc encouraged not to limit themselves
to disclosure of the information specified in this list.

10.2. It is recommended to the compeny, which is the parent
of other companies, that consolidated results of the whole
group lo which the company belongs should be disclosed
when information specificd in item 1 of Recommendation
10.1 Is nnder diselosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on the profcssional
baekground, qualifieations of the members of supervisory
and management hodies, ehicf executive officer of the
company should be disclosed as well as potential conflicts
of interest that may have an effcet on their decisions when
information specified in item 4 of Recommendation 10.1
about the members of the eompany’s supervisory and
menagement bodies is under diselosure. It is also
recomenended that information about the amount of
remuneration received from the company and other income
should be disclosed with regard to members of the
company's supervisory and inanagement bodles and chicf
executive officer as per Prineiple VIIL

10.4. It is recommended that information about the links
between the company and its slakeholders, including
employees, creditors, suppliers, local community, as well as
the company’s policy with regard to human resources,
cmployee partieipation schemes in the coinpany’s share
capital, etc. should be disclosed when information specified
in item 7 of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

10.5. Inforination should be diselosed in such a way that
ncither shareholders nor investors are discriminated with
regard to the manner or scope of access to information.
Information should be disclosed to all simultancously. It is
recommended thet notices ebout material events should be
announced before or after a frading session on the Vilniys
Stock Exchange, so that all the compeny’s shareholders and
investors should have equal access lo the information and
make informed investing deoisions.

Yes

The eompany presents the information through the information
disclosure system used by ,,OMX Company News Serviee™ in
the Lithuanian and English languages at the same lime. The
comnpany does not diselose any information that might have
effeet on the price of its securities in the comments, interviews
or any other ways before such information is announced
through the information systein of the exchange.
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10.6. Channels for disseminating information should
provide for feir, timely and cost-efficient or in cases
provided by the legel acts free of cherge necess to relevant
information by users. It is recommended that information
technologies should be employed for wider disseminalion of
information, for instance, by placing the information on the
company’s website. It is recommended that information
should be published and placed on the company’s website
not only in Lithuanian, but also in English, and, whenever
possible and necessary, in other languages as well,

Yes

The company plans to sign a contracl with Pilniaus veriybiniy

| popieriy birfo, AB (Vilnius Stock Exchange) regarding the

creation of the column for the link with the investors in the
website of the company where all information published by
the informehon disclosure and distribution system OMX
Company News Service was also published in the website of
the company.

10.7. It is recommended that the company's annual reports
and other periodical aecounts prepared by the company
should be placed on the company’s websile. It is
recommended that the company should announce
information about material events and changes in the price
of the company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the
company's website 100.

Yes

Principle XI: The selection of the company’s auditor

The mechanism of the selection of the company’s auditor should ensure independence of the firm of aurditor’s conclusion and

opinion.

1 1.I. An annual audit of the company’s financial reports and
interim reports should be conducled by an independent firm
of auditors in order to provide an external and objective
opinion on the company's financial statements.

The audit of annuel financial statement and annual repor is
conducted by the independent audit company.

11.2. It is recommended that the company's supervisory
board and, where il is not sel up, the company’s board
should propose a candidate firm of suditors to the general
shareholders’ meeting.

Yes

11.3. It is recommended that thc company should disclose to
its shareholders the level of fees paid to the finn of auditors
for non-sudit services rendered o lhe company. This
information should be also known to the company’s
supervisory board and, where it is not formed, the
company’s board upon their eonsideration which firm of
auditors o propose for the general shareholders’ meeting.

Yes

In 2009 the company had a tax service agreement wilh the
audit company. Bolh the candidacy of the audit company and
the specific auditor have been agreed with the Securities
Commission.
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